
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

December 2, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 863 7736 1233 

Password: 329396 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Ed Tardoni 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action) Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business  Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Update Kim White, Incident Commander 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee) (For Action) Ed Tardoni 

1. Termination and Appeals 

C. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings (For Action) Richard Mathey 

D. Sentinel Event Policy (For Action) Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety 

VI. New Business  Taylor Jones  

A. Board Policy (from the Governance Committee) (For Review)       Barbara Sowada 

1. Guidelines for Negotiating Non-Physician Provider Agreements 

2. Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts 

B. Patient Safety Plan (For Review)              Kara Jackson 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Marty Kelsey 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Richard Mathey  

1. Capital Expenditure Request (For Action) 

2. State Loan and Investment Board Capital Expenditure Request (For Ratification) 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

November Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

1/192



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

December 2, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 863 7736 1233 

Password: 329396 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

F. Compliance Committee Ed Tardoni 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Richard Mathey 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel 

A. Contract Consent Agenda (For Action)  

1. Harmony Healthcare IT – Healthdata Archiver 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. AdBay 

2. Lincare 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, Medical Staff President  

A. Supervising/Mentoring/Collaborating Physician Forms (For Your Information)  

XI. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/192



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/192



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

October 7, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on October 7, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, 

Medical Staff President; Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel; Mr. Darryn McGarvey and Mr. Dan 

Deyle, CliftonLarsonAllen; and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County Commission Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson said we have been receiving great reviews about Dr. Lex Auguiste, OB/GYN. She 

said it has been wonderful to hear how he has impacted so many patients already. Ms. Richardson 

shared a story provided by Ms. Nicole Halstead, Dialysis Director, from a recent shopping 

experience. Ms. Halstead was wearing an “RN” shirt while shopping and she was approached by 

a gentleman. He asked her if she worked in Med/Surg or ICU. She said she did not work in either 

one but knows a lot of staff in those areas. She said the man praised “Dani” and Dr. Alicia Gray 

for the care they gave to his mother. He was very emotional and told her he was grateful for the 

compassion they shared with his mother. He told her he was so pleased with the care and said he 

is going to donate to our Foundation because he knows the care his family received was such great, 

kind care. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried. 

 

  

4/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the September 2, 2020, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Command, reported Covid is making a comeback in Sweetwater County 

and throughout Wyoming. She said it is ramping up throughout Idaho, Montana, and all over the 

place. Ms. White said we are watching that closely. We have had one hospitalization. Staff are 

extremely busy but handling things very well. We are changing the times at the swabbing station 

and will send out announcements later this week. With the cold weather and with it getting darker 

earlier, we want to make sure we keep our staff safe. Ms. White said we are working with public 

health and the school districts. We are changing to a saliva test and hopefully that will help some 

of the testing and nasal pharyngeal things the community and patients do not love. She said we 

have had one positive employee since the last meeting. No one was quarantined from that one 

person. Ms. White reported we are status quo on personal protective equipment and maintaining 

at this point. Mr. Jones said there has been quite an uptick in the mountain states and asked if we 

know why. Ms. White said a lot of things are opening up like restaurants, bars, schools, but there 

is no one thing listed for sure. Mr. Jones thanked Ms. White and said to keep up the good work.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

FY20 Audit Report 

 

Mr. Darryn McGarvey and Mr. Dan Deyle from CliftonLarsonAllen introduced themselves. Mr. 

Deyle is the new manager on the audit. Mr. McGarvey said they performed the audit 100% 

remotely given where things are at from a Covid perspective. He said they are trying to do all of 

their work remotely to keep their clients and employees safe. Mr. McGarvey said they pulled the 

work off safely with the help of Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient 

Financial Services Director, Ms. Jan Layne, Controller, Ms. Richardson, and the entire team. The 

team tried to make it feel like they were onsite and had check-in meetings with the team every day. 

Mr. McGarvey said the experience was quite different from previous years but said he was happy 

to report they pulled it off and the audit is in really good shape. He said there is a lot of ambiguity 

on information from Health and Human Services on Covid-related funds. Mr. McGarvey reviewed 

the PowerPoint presentation they reviewed in detail with the Finance and Audit group the previous 

week. He said Covid-19 provider relief funds and Medicare advance payments resulted in a 

significant increase in days of cash on hand. The Medicare advance must be repaid. There was one 

minor audit adjustment that was proposed and no material weaknesses identified. He said the 

upcoming accounting standards that will have an impact involve leases and capitalized interest. 

Mr. Deyle reviewed: 

- the industry benchmark data 

5/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

- operating margin (relatively steady bottom line and Covid-19 funds are not reported as 

operating revenue, the organization is trending in a positive direction from a revenue 

standpoint) 

- total margin (adds in non-operating revenues and expenses including interest expense on 

bonds and provider relief funds, fairly consistent with where it’s been in the past) 

- total EBIDA is a great indicator of what is the cash flow from operations from the 

organization and is relatively consistent within industry benchmarks 

- operating loss per provider FTE specifically the clinics focus on the trends, visits per 

provider FTE (clinics) increased nicely in 2018, stayed pretty steady and then decreased in 

2020 with impact from Covid 

- days cash on hand sees huge growth almost identical to where we were in 2019 

- net days in AR slowly trending in the upper direction and a testament to the business office 

as they focused on driving down the length of time it takes to collect AR, percentage of 

AR over 90 days old encouraging data 

- bad debt and charity care as a percent of gross patient service revenue significantly higher 

than other CliftonLarsonAllen clients and is very demographic-based and not a true apples 

to apples comparison 

- debt service coverage similar trend line as we see in total margin and consistent with the 

industry trends and well above the requirement for the debt agreement, debt to 

capitalization looks at the organization’s reliance to long term debt and nice to see well 

below the industry benchmarks 

- average age of plant has been a steady growth implies the organization has some capital 

expenditures on the horizon and should see that start to come down in 2021  

Mr. McGarvey said it is apparent the hospital could have held their own even without the Covid 

funds. He reviewed industry trends and Covid-19 impact on hospitals and health systems. He said 

the federal response was quick with a “ready, shoot, aim” approach. He said there has been a flurry 

of activity with a lot of money distributed. They may have a hindsight 2020 approach when they 

revisit how those funds are used. Mr. McGarvey said if an organization received more than 

$750,000 they will be subject to a single audit. He said we do not have a lot of guidance on that 

yet. The audit is due nine months after the fiscal year ends but the timeline may be extended. He 

said CliftonLarsonAllen performs more single audits than any other organization in the country so 

they feel confident they can help us with that process. Mr. McGarvey said there are definitely more 

reporting requirements related to this as well. They really focused on lost revenue first and then 

expenses second. Forty-eight hours ago, they again were redefining some of the definitions related 

to additional expenses and healthcare capacity. The Hospital has about $6.5M provider relief funds 

that we have recognized in our income statement. The rules may change so there is a risk some of 

those funds may have to be paid back to Health and Human Services. There will be additional 

guidance coming from them and we do not know what that information will be. Mr. McGarvey 

said there are a lot of unknowns at this point. CliftonLarsonAllen is advising clients and doing the 

best they can with the information they have at the time. They are conducting a webinar October 

8 to talk through some of these changes. Mr. McGarvey said there is a lot of good information in 

the meeting packet that is not related to Covid-19. He said the team did a great job getting ready 

for the remote audit and it was a great audit. He said CliftonLarsonAllen is happy to be a partner 

and work through some of these things, and happy the Hospital had a successful year. Mr. Jones 

congratulated everyone in the Hospital responsible for the work to ensure a clean audit and he can 

see how well the organization has done not only through Covid but in the last three years. He said 

it has really been a lot of difficult times and adversity and to have it laid out in those graphs shows 

6/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

a pretty plain picture. Mr. Jones said he wanted to thank everyone in the organization because it 

takes a team effort to hold it together and improve. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Love, Mr. Cheese, 

Ms. Layne, and Ms. Erika Taylor. She said they did a great job and excellent work on the audit. 

Ms. Richardson spoke to the partnership between CliftonLarsonAllen and the Hospital. She said 

they have been so helpful and literally right by our side as always but especially now. Ms. 

Richardson said we continue to try to make sense of all the changes coming pretty fast and furious. 

Mr. McGarvey said they appreciate the partnership and said the Hospital has a nice organization 

with great leadership and great Board. He said he hopes that Covid slows and we can get back to 

some sense of normal in 2021. The motion to approve the FY20 Audit Report as presented was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

Board Policy – Maintenance of Board and Board Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Dr. Sowada said she thinks the policy itself is explanatory and asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Kelsey said if you look at the state statute on this, there is a tremendously big manual that the 

Wyoming Department of Archives has and we are required to follow that. He asked Ms. 

Richardson about all the records for the Hospital. She said we have them on hard drives and those 

are backed up in IT. Mr. Kelsey said we might read over that manual really carefully because his 

experience is the State is a stickler on what is accepted and he said it gets to be a real nightmare to 

maintain. Mr. Kelsey said he was just wondering how you handle that. He said his question goes 

far beyond Board minutes. Ms. Richardson said we do adhere to the statutory guidelines regarding 

the type and length of storage. Mr. Tardoni said there is a sizeable warehouse used to store records. 

At one time, the County offered us the old county building for storage and we looked at it but we 

decided it was not feasible. Mr. Kelsey said it is just something to think about. He said it is  

interesting if you read the statute it says all public records are the property of the State of Wyoming. 

You have to worry about fire and theft and all sorts of things. Ms. Richardson said we will check 

on it. Mr. Mathey said he thought we adopted a policy indicating specifically how long records 

must be maintained. Mr. Kelsey said that’s all fine and well but the State changes that periodically 

so we are responsible for abiding by that so we have to keep on top of it and read that manual from 

time to time. Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, said she has redone the records retention 

policy and it is based on the State schedule. She said it is in Policy Stat and she updates it annually. 

Dr. Sowada said this policy speaks simply to Board materials.  

 

Employee Policy – Political Activity 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the policy has been discussed at two different Human Resources Committee 

meetings. Mr. Kelsey said this is one of the policies before he left the Committee that he asked the 

Hospital to look at because he did not see we had one. He asked what if we have one of our 

employees who wants to run for the state legislature or wants to run for county commissioner. Do 

we encourage that or do we say you have to do that on your time, use vacation time, etc.? He said 

a lot of organizations have policies that govern what the Board policy is on whether it is 

encouraged, etc. Mr. Kelsey said that was not addressed in this policy and said we might want to 

look at that and see if we want to address that or not. Ms. Richardson said she asked around to 

other places and the ones we talked to said it is on their own time and have to not have it interfere 

in their job. She said if we want to add that in there, we can add that in there. Mr. Kelsey said if 

the Board wants to add that in that would be great and said it is just a thought. Mr. Jones asked if 

we need any language in there about conflict of interest. Mr. Kelsey said there are different things 

7/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

to think about. Mr. Tardoni said he encourages people to do this but they are doing something on 

their own time and it should remain on their own time. He said this political activity policy kind 

of outlines what they can and cannot do. Dr. Sowada said when the Committee looked at the policy 

Mr. Kelsey’s question didn’t even register in her mind and she appreciates him bringing this up. 

She said she thinks we need to take it back to the Committee to talk about it some more. Mr. 

Tardoni said we need to know what the Board wants. Mr. Jones said it is sent back to the 

Committee for further work. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson said we have been consumed with State Land and Investment Board (SLIB) grants 

and changes in the CARES Act funds. She said she was going to give a brief update and then talk 

about the big items we need to discuss. She said we continue to do our socially distanced person-

centered care workshops. We are moving forward with communicating with empathy training 

plans. The Joint Commission has not been on-site to-date. We continue to prepare and we are 

making sure we are ready. We continue to round and are still waiting. Ms. Richardson said we  

appreciate the leaders and their staff ensuring we are prepared. The Paint the Town Pink virtual 

event was a success. Ms. Tasha Harris, Cancer Center Director, and her team along with Ms. Kelly 

Sugihara, Wyoming Cancer Resource Services Region V Coordinator, put forward a really good 

event. Ms. Richardson said we will have our socially distanced Halloween cruise thru and haunted 

garden event on Friday, October 30. She said we will make sure we take all the precautions 

necessary pending any orders from the Governor. She shared a reminder that we are going to have 

the Quality Board Workshop on October 29 at 4:00 PM and that special meeting is in lieu of the 

November 4 regular meeting. Ms. Richardson said there will be some business we will need to 

discuss at the October 29 Board meeting and asked for the Board’s pleasure on timing if they 

would like to meet earlier than 4:00 PM. Ms. Richardson said we have seen a big spike in Covid 

cases in Sweetwater County. We have implored people to be diligent about social distancing, 

wearing masks, washing hands, and doing all we can to minimize the spread. Ms. Richardson said 

she appreciates everyone’s efforts. There was discussion of resolution of emergency powers, SLIB 

and projects, and CARES Act money. Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for granting the 

emergency powers to her during the pandemic. She has been very conservative and has been very 

careful to not abuse the powers. She listed the grant applications that have been approved so far 

for a total of $5.525M. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, Ms. 

Love, Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, and Ms. Mary Fischer, Lab Director, for their hard work 

to put the grants together for submission. Ms. Richardson said the meeting packet contained a more 

detailed graphic of transactions that have occurred since the approval of the SLIB grants. She 

reviewed the list of purchase orders issued for SLIB projects to-date. The motion to ratify the 

expenses at this point outlined in yellow in the packet as detailed by Ms. Richardson was made by 

Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Richardson said the medical office building entrance project bid came in at $223,000 more 

than the original estimate for the grant. The team decided we do not want to move forward with 

this project at this time. The short time available, the long lead-time on getting the door, and the 

increased cost lead us to believe the project is not in our best interest at this time. Mr. Will 

Wheatley, Plan One Architects, said we were given a 12-week lead-time for the doors. This 

instance created a pretty stressful situation for the contractors due to the completion date at the end 

of December. Mr. Tardoni asked if they are seeing a squeeze on available personnel on contracts. 

8/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

Mr. Wheatley said yes and no, it depends on the niche we are trying to fill. Ms. Richardson said 

right now all the requests for reimbursement must be in to the Attorney General’s office by 

December 15 and we have not heard any discussion of extending that date. Commissioner Smith 

said what he has heard is the State wants everything in by everyone by the 15th so they can get all 

of their information submitted to the federal government by the 30th.  

 

Ms. Richardson said the HVAC project and UV lights original estimate was $2.314M and 

$463,875 respectively. She said the bid came in significantly higher than that. She sent the Board 

some information about that and said she wanted to bring this to the Board’s attention to get 

approval if we want to move forward due to the variance being significantly higher than the 

estimate. Ms. Richardson asked Mr. Jake Blevins of ST&B Engineering to explain the variance. 

Mr. Blevins said when doing the various grants we came up with $2.3M ,then got the grant in 

August, and then got into architectural design and found we have a sub-par roof structure and also 

discovered some variations in roof conditions in the existing building. We discovered the process 

where we moved forward with getting the design done to get the grant and then found these issues. 

Mr. Kelsey asked if this new amount that is much higher is the GMP that Groathouse gave them. 

Mr. Blevins said we do not have that amount yet because we are moving so fast as a design team. 

He said we do not have a formal GMP document. He said we are expecting to set a GMP on the 

100% information. Mr. Blevins said everything has been advertised per the statutes. He said he 

significantly underestimated the amount of equipment we could order and have by December 15. 

Ms. Richardson said we originally discussed with the HVAC project we thought we could probably 

finish about $900,000 of $2.3M by December 15. We said if we had to, we could supplement with 

our own funds. Now that it is significantly higher, Ms. Richardson said she does not want to exceed 

that $1.4M we had originally set aside for that amount. She said we have to make sure that project 

will be finished to that $2.3M for the HVAC project and the amount for the UV lights by December 

15. Ms. Richardson said we are hoping for some assurance from Groathouse that we will be able 

to meet that deadline. Mr. Blevins said SLIB will pay for anything we get done by that point. He 

said he doesn’t want to put words in their mouth but he believes we can get the lion’s share of 

those two project’s SLIB funds by December 15. Ms. Richardson said she wants to make sure we 

do everything we can to maximize the grant request to the $2.7M those two projects add up to. Mr. 

Blevins said because the last pay app is due on December 15 what he is going to ask is produce 

the first application on October 15 so we have three pay apps. He said Groathouse has been 

working very hard on moving this forward. Ms. Love said that because we bought the Trane unit 

we were told we would get a discount. She said we are sending in our first request from SLIB for 

$628,000 so we already have our first step going on this. Ms. Richardson clarified she only wants 

to commit $1.4M of our own funds to this project. She does not want to come back to the Board 

to ask for permission to spend additional funds for this. Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Richardson to 

explain why if something goes crazy what would be the downside of spending more than $1.4M 

of the Hospital’s money. Ms. Richardson said that was the original amount she was approved for 

and she would like to keep it at that. She would prefer not to be in December and have to be 

responsible for adding our own funds because we have not been able to finish and bill for up to 

the amount planned. She said we certainly could use CARES Act money but we should be able to 

bill and request and receive up to the amount requested from SLIB. Dr. Sowada said she heard Ms. 

Richardson say we could afford more but we would rather not. Mr. Mathey clarified the plan is to 

pay that $1.4M out of CARES Act money. Ms. Richardson said she included a summary of how 

we have reconciled the CARES Act money. The information that was issued in June was changed 

by Health and Human Services in September so we want to make sure we are accounting for it 

9/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

correctly. This new guidance may not be as beneficial to hospitals so we have been asked to submit 

letters to our legislators requesting they go back to the June guidance for reconciling the funds. As 

of Monday, the guidance even changed then. Ms. Richardson said we are trying to stay on top of 

it and she will keep the Board updated as to any changes that come up. She said we feel confident 

Health and Human Services’ interpretation of capital expenditures is considered expenses so we 

think we could use that for the HVAC project and Lab remodel. The motion to authorize the CEO 

to proceed with the HVAC and UV projects being fully aware of the cost of these projects being 

$4,384,930 was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Richardson introduced Ms. Ann Clevenger as the new Chief Nursing Officer and said we are 

so excited to welcome her to our hospital family. Ms. Clevenger said she is very excited to be here. 

Ms. Richardson said Ms. Clevenger brings with her a wealth of experience and knowledge. She 

said a press release on Ms. Clevenger is coming out soon and asked everyone to please watch for 

that. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Mr. Kelsey said he did not have anything additional to add. He referenced the minutes and his 

chair report in the packet. Mr. Kelsey said he is looking forward to the workshop later this month.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said his comments are in the chair report. He pointed out there is a violence prevention 

policy included in the minutes and that is a working document. Mr. Tardoni said it is not ready for 

comment, just something the committee is still working on. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey asked that everyone please see the most excellent chair report provided by Mr. Tardoni 

that he created in Mr. Mathey’s absence from the committee meeting the prior month.  

 

Capital Expenditure Requests:  Mr. Mathey reviewed capital expenditure request FY21-17 for a 

cone system submitted by Ms. Harris & Dr. Joshua Binks, Radiation Oncologist. Mr. Mathey said 

more detail is available in the packet. The motion to approve FY21-17 as requested was made by 

Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. Mr. Mathey reviewed capital expenditure 

request FY21-23 submitted by Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director, for equipment for the 

Neurologist who is scheduled to be on-board later this calendar year. He said more detail is 

available in the packet. The motion to approve FY21-23 as requested was made by Mr. Mathey; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $936,722.29 as presented by Mr. 

Cheese was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

  

10/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 8 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he did not have anything more to add than what is in the chair report and minutes.  

 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Marshall reported we rolled out the first phase of the revamped Guardian Angel Program. 

Envelopes will be delivered to departments and they will put the envelopes into the discharge 

packets. We will measure response to see if patients and families respond to that. Ms. Marshall 

said the Guardian Angel Program is an opportunity for families or patients to nominate someone 

who participated in their care or they came in contact with. They make a donation in any amount 

to the Foundation and we will honor the staff member with a pin they can wear. We will look at 

how we can further expand that program. Ms. Marshall said the Annual Gifts Committee is up and 

going. We are working on finalizing our collateral. The Waldner House continues to be utilized a 

lot from 3-6 days a week. Ms. Marshall said we are gearing up again for a couple of smaller 

projects. The County has generously volunteered to partner with us on a couple of things. The 

Foundation Board has approved doing something fun for the staff next week. We are distributing 

gifts to staff on the main campus and at the College Hill location to say thank you for everything 

they are doing and to show support to them. Ms. Marshall said the Foundation Board feels each 

and every staff member makes a difference to our community. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the chair report is in the packet. He said this is the first time we have received a 

report on an audit. The details are in the packet. Mr. Tardoni congratulated the physicians on their 

compliance. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes are in the packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board would handle in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said his report is in the packet. He said he is happy to report on September 21 the 

Medical Staff Bylaws Committee unanimously approved a new draft of the Medical Staff Bylaws 

after 2 to 2 ½ or maybe even 3 years. Mr. Mathey said it has come a long, long way from that first 

draft we looked at quite awhile ago. In the process, one of the most valuable things in his report is 

what exactly do Medical Staff Bylaws do. He said these do it and do it well. He pointed out some 

highlights in his report. Mr. Mathey said the draft bylaws contain an appeals process when 

members of the Medical Staff face adverse credentials or adverse privileges action. A termination 

and appeal policy is awaiting action related to the adoption of the Medical Staff Bylaws by the 

Medical Staff. The timeline will be introduction of the bylaws on October 29 and a vote at the 

December meeting. He said these will come before the Board. Mr. Mathey said he really is quite 

11/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 9 

pleased that they are done. Mr. Jones thanked everyone involved in the many hours of work on 

those.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Ms. Campbell said the Experian Health Master Customer Agreement was presented to her by Ms. 

Love so she said Ms. Love could answer any questions anyone may have. Ms. Campbell said we 

need the agreement to start work with Cerner. The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the 

Experian agreement was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Lauridsen said the Bylaws Committee met on the September 21. Mr. Mathey’s review covers 

it. The Medical Executive Committee met September 22 and it was largely informational. Dr. 

Lauridsen said we are happy to welcome Ms. Ann Clevenger as the new CNO. He said he thinks 

we can anticipate some discussion on policies and procedures as the bylaws wrap up. He said we 

will hope to have more to report later. Mr. Mathey  asked when the bylaws will be voted upon by 

the Medical Staff. Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, said they will be ratified by 

the Medical Executive Committee on October 27 and then she can mail them out to everybody and  

we have to wait twenty days and can schedule a General Medical Staff meeting by the middle of 

November. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Kelsey asked about the timing on October 29. The Quality Workshop is starting at 4:00 PM. 

Mr. Jones said we will meet at 2:00 PM for a regular meeting and then go in to the workshop at 

4:00 PM.  

 

Mr. Phillips said Ms. Richardson asked him to be involved but he is not aware of anything for 

executive session so with the Board’s permission he would leave the meeting.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session for personnel. He said the Board would hop 

off the current call and be on their executive session call. He said it would probably be a couple of 

hours and then the Board would come out of executive session and return to the open session call 

and wrap up the meeting before they adjourned. The motion to go into executive session was made 

by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:17 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to go back in to regular 

session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.  

 

  

12/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 7, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 10 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve hospital privileges as discussed in executive session was made by Mr. 

Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from September 15, 2020  

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Tony Pedri, Orthopaedic Surgery 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Mansour Khaddr, Cardiovascular Disease (Casper Cardiology) 

3. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Fei Lian, Urology 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Clint Allred, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Rashmee Shah, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Raoul Joubran, Gastroenterology (Gastroenterology Assoc. Casper) 

5. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Jonathan Roddy, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the physician contract requested in executive session 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their work and said we are getting a lot of things done. There being 

no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:21 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

13/192



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

October 29, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in a special 

workshop on October 29, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater 

County Commission Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson read aloud some comments regarding the Walk In Clinic from Sweetwater County 

Business Feedback. The original message said patients were treated professionally and with 

kindness and heart. Following the original post, several favorable comments were added by others 

about the Clinic. Ms. Richardson said she is very proud of the Clinic and all they are doing. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mr. Jones said the meeting is abbreviated and the Board will only take action on something we 

need to take action on. He said one of the reasons we are not reviewing everything is because we 

didn’t have all the groups meeting before the packet and notices, so we are having an abbreviated 

meeting. He gave a reminder this workshop takes the place of the regular November meeting. The 

motion to approve the agenda as amended to move “action following executive session” 

immediately after the executive session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Jones said this is not an action item but he wanted to give the public a chance to address the 

Board. Ms. Richardson reminded everyone the Halloween Cruise Thru in the Haunted Garden is 

a socially distanced, drive thru event on Friday, October 30, from 4:00 – 6:00 PM. Ms. Richardson 

14/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 29, 2020 Board of Trustees Special Workshop 

Page 2 

introduced Ms. Carrie Canestorp, Director of Health Information Management. Mr. Jones 

welcomed Ms. Canestorp.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Board Policy – Maintenance of Board and Board Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the packet. She said the basic purpose is to outline how all 

Board and Committee minutes will be cared for. The policy was presented at the last meeting for 

review. The Governance Committee recommends passage by the Board. The motion to approve 

the policy as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Medical Imaging Project  

 

Ms. Richardson said she sent an e-mail with the anticipated cost of renovation of the medical 

imaging area. She said the area, other than CT and Mammo, has been relatively untouched and is 

in need of renovation. We received State Land and Investment Board (SLIB) grant money for the 

HVAC system. During the process it was identified some areas must be vacant for some of the 

HVAC system work so we thought that would be an opportunity to make some much needed 

renovations to that area. Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering, said Mr. Will Wheatley, Plan One 

Architects, has been more involved but agreed the timing is perfect. Ms. Richardson recommends 

we move forward with the project and said we can use Board reserve funds. She would like 

permission to contract with a Construction Manager At Risk (CMAR) and sign a contract with the 

architect to start the project as soon as possible. She said if the final cost exceeds the amount 

approved then she will bring it back to the Board for approval similar to the action taken with the 

Lab remodel. Mr. Kelsey asked if the source will be CARES Act funds. Ms. Richardson said 

reserves is where we are putting reconciled CARES loss funds from loss of revenue. She said we 

won’t be subject to the June 30 deadline. Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, said we will 

have approximately $18.5M in that account by the end of December. Ms. Love outlined that fund 

and Mr. Kelsey thanked her for the information. The motion to authorize the CEO to move forward 

with the medical imaging renovation project as outlined in the October 26 e-mail and authorize 

the CEO to use Board funds, contract with a CMAR and architect for the project as presented was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

SLIB Capital Expenditure Request 

 

Mr. Mathey said the request is for money that has been spent already. Reimbursement will be 

sought from the applicable SLIB grant. The motion to approve the ratification of SLIB capital 

expenditure request FY21-29 expenditures as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by 

Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

  

15/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 29, 2020 Board of Trustees Special Workshop 

Page 3 

COMMITTEE INFORMATION 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the purpose of the Compliance Committee is to monitor if compliance activities 

are occurring. It is not their job to monitor the outcome or results of the activities. There is a 

hospital workgroup that follows through. For example, an audit was conducted of the credentialing 

committee and a risk analysis was sent to the Quality Committee for review and approval.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, gave an update on the Medical Executive 

Committee and bylaws. She said we have to send them out to the Medical Staff twenty days ahead 

of the vote on December 1. Mr. Mathey asked if they can vote if they do not attend the meeting. 

Ms. Downs and Ms. Richardson said they believe they must attend via Zoom or in-person.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session for personnel. The motion to go into executive 

session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 3:06 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to go back in to regular 

session and resume the special workshop of the Board was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve credentials and renew approval of privileges to healthcare providers as  

discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from October 13, 2020  

 

1. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Banu Symington, Hematology/Oncology 

2. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Christian Van Kirk, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

3. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Philip Najm, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Gary Van Heuvelen, Radiation Oncology 

 Dr. Margaret Barnes, Radiation Oncology 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the medical directorship contract discussed in 

executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

16/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 29, 2020 Board of Trustees Special Workshop 

Page 4 

Mr. Jones announced the Board would take a break at 3:08 PM and resume the workshop at 4:00 

PM.  

 

QUALITY COMMITTEE PRESENTATION 

 

Ms. Richardson said that every year the Board has special workshops with the Finance and Audit 

Committee and the Quality Committee. She introduced the presenters: Ms. Kari Quickenden, Chief 

Clinical Officer; Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety; Ms. Karali 

Plonsky, Quality Analyst; Ms. Kalpana Pohkrel, Quality Analyst; Mr. Corey Worden, Quality 

Analyst; and Ms. Jodi Corley, Clinic Systems Analyst/Informatics. Ms. Jackson said the group 

appreciated the opportunity. Each presenter took a turn reviewing information in a PowerPoint 

presentation on broad overviews of the following topics: 

 Accreditation 

 Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) 

 Patient Safety 

 Culture of Safety Survey 

 Press Ganey 

 Star Rating Program 

 Merit-Based Incentive Payment System 

The PowerPoint presentation will be available for the Board to review. Ms. Jackson said we 

recognize quality is very complex with a lot of moving parts. Mr. Jones commended everyone for 

their work and progress as well as the improvements that have taken place. He said he looks 

forward to what is coming in the future. Ms. Jackson thanked her team and Ms. Quickenden for 

her support and leadership. Mr. Jones said it takes a team. Mr. Kelsey added his thanks to staff for 

the good work being done. Mr. Mathey and Mr. Kelsey met to review the quality consultant’s 

report and have asked staff for their recommendations. Mr. Mathey and Mr. Kelsey will report 

back to the Board. Ms. Quickenden said quality is a great team to work with and there is a lot of 

great work going on. She said she feels really good about where the work is going. She thanked 

the Board for their support. Ms. Richardson thanked the team and said they did great work and it 

was a great presentation.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:48 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

17/192



                                                                                                    Policy Stat #: 
 

Termination and Appeal 
General: 
This Termination and Appeal policy and procedure applies to all employees of Memorial 
Hospital and to non-employed physicians.  Only the Hospital’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has 
the authority to terminate the employment of a Hospital employee and must provide a written 
directive to the Human Resources Office prior to any termination proceeding. 
 
This Termination and Appeal policy and procedure does not apply to reduction-in-force (layoffs) 
due to a lack of funds, lack of work or other reasons. 
 
From the time an employee is notified that he/she is being terminated, until all internal appeal 
avenues have been exhausted, the employee is entitled to continuing regular pay. At the 
discretion of the Hospital, the employee may be suspended with pay during this period of time, 
or may continue working. Should an employee resign, however, pay will cease at that time. 
 
Employees may not utilize the Hospital’s Conflict Resolution policy to address termination 
decisions. 
 

Definitions: 
At-Will Employee 
An employee who works for the Hospital and is in the “Introductory Period”, per Hospital 
policy. It is understood that no consideration has been furnished to the Hospital for the 
employment of the employee other than the employee’s services. Any employee has the right 
to terminate his/her employment with the Hospital and the Hospital has the same right. 
 
Part Time Employee 
An employee who occupies a position and is scheduled to normally work less than thirty (30) 
hours in a workweek. 
 
Full Time Employee 
An employee who occupies a position and is scheduled to normally work thirty (30) hours a 
week or more. These include Non-Physician Providers as defined in the Medical Staff Bylaws. 
 
Termination: 
The involuntary termination of an employee by the Hospital’s CEO. 
 

Termination of “At-Will” Part Time Employees 
Notice of termination shall be provided by the Director of Human Resources, or designee, upon 
a written directive from the CEO, by registered or certified mail to the last known address of 
such employee. Proof of such written notice, together with the proof of mailing, shall be kept 
and retained in the records of the Hospital. Although one or more steps in the Hospital’s 

18/192



Corrective Action Policy may be applied, the Hospital will not necessarily give the employee 
formal reasons for the termination. 
 
Should the employee believe that the termination decision was based on the exercise of his or 
her constitutional rights, and/or that he or she has a reasonable expectation of continued 
employment, and/or that the action to terminate his or her employment would stigmatize him 
or her, the employee may appeal the decision to the CEO in writing within ten (10) calendar 
days of notification of termination. The CEO will review the written appeal and may (or may 
not) determine to interview the employee and/or discuss the matter with supervisory or other 
personnel. The CEO shall inform the employee of his or her decision in writing. The CEO’s 
decision in this matter is final. 
 

Termination of Non “At-Will” Part Time Employees 
Notice of termination shall be provided by the Director of Human Resources, or designee, upon 
a written directive from the CEO, by registered or certified mail to the last known address of 
such employee. Proof of such written notice, together with the proof of mailing, shall be kept 
and retained in the records of the Hospital. The employee shall be provided reasons for the 
termination by the Hospital. 
 
Should the employee decide to appeal the termination decision, the employee may appeal the 
decision to the CEO in writing within ten (10) calendar days of notification of termination. The 
CEO will review the written appeal and may (or may not) determine to interview the employee 
and/or discuss the matter with supervisory or other personnel. The CEO shall inform the 
employee of his or her decision in writing. The CEO’s decision in this matter is final. 
 

Termination of “At-Will” Full Time Employees 
The Director of Human Resources, or designee, having first received a written directive from 
the CEO, shall terminate the employment of a full time employee who is in the “Introductory 
Period” upon notification in writing of such decision by registered or certified mail to the last 
known address of such employee. Proof of such written notice together with the proof of 
mailing, shall be kept and retained in the records of the Hospital. Reasons for the termination 
decision shall not be given, other than outlined below. 
 
 Should the employee believe that the decision to terminate his or her employment was based 
on the exercise of his or her constitutional rights, and/or that he or she has a reasonable 
expectation of continued employment and/or that the action to terminate his or her 
employment would stigmatize him or her, the following procedure will take place: 
 

1. The employee may request a hearing before an Administrative Hearing Officer by 
requesting same in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the termination 
notice. The request shall be made to the CEO. 

 

19/192



2. The CEO shall immediately notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of the request and 
shall forward the written request for a hearing to him or her. The Board of Trustees’ 
attorney shall then arrange for an Administrative Hearing Officer to conduct a pre-
hearing conference as soon as practical. 
 

3. At the request of the Administrative Hearing Officer, the CEO shall submit to the 
Administrative Hearing Officer his or her reasons for termination. At the same time, the 
Administrative Hearing Officer shall request the employee to submit to the 
Administrative Hearing Officer substantial evidence that the termination decision was 
based upon an exercise of his or her constitutional rights and/or that he or she has a 
reasonable expectation of continued employment, and/or how the action of 
termination would stigmatize him or her. 
 

4. After reviewing the reasons for the termination and any evidence submitted by the 
employee, the Administrative Hearing Officer shall determine that: 
 
a. Sufficient evidence has been presented by the employee to warrant a formal hearing 

by the Administrative Hearing Officer. In such case, a hearing will be scheduled and, 
at the conclusion of the hearing, the Administrative Hearing Officer will submit a 
written copy of his or her findings, conclusions, and recommendations to the Board 
of Trustees for a final decision. 

OR 
 
b. Insufficient evidence has been presented by the employee to warrant a formal 

hearing by the Administrative Hearing Officer. In such a case, the Administrative 
Hearing Officer will inform both the CEO and the employee of his or her findings. 
The CEO shall discuss these findings with the Board of Trustees’ attorney and will 
subsequently make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees for a final decision. 

 
5. If the Administrative Hearing Officer determines that a formal hearing shall be held, he 

or she will immediately provide the employee the CEO’s reasons for termination and will 
immediately provide the CEO with any evidence submitted by the employee. 
OR 
 
If the Administrative Hearing Officer determines that a formal hearing is not warranted, 
upon request, he or she will provide the employee the CEO’s reasons for termination. 

 
6. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Hospital to ensure that these due process 

proceedings are conducted in a timely manner. The Administrative Hearing Officer shall 
make a determination as to whether or not a formal hearing is warranted within thirty 
(30) calendar days from receipt of notice by the Board of Trustees’ attorney. Should the 
Administrative Hearing Officer determine that a formal hearing be conducted, he or she 
shall notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of same. The Board of Trustees’ attorney 
shall then arrange for a pre-hearing conference as soon as practical. The formal hearing 

20/192



shall be held within thirty (30) calendar days following the pre-hearing conference. The 
Hospital shall pay for all administrative costs associated with the hearing including fees 
charged by the Hearing Officer and transcription services. The parties shall pay their 
own legal fees, if any. The Hospital’s Rules of Practice Governing Hearings shall be 
followed. Should the Administrative Hearing Officer determine that a formal hearing is 
not warranted, a recommendation regarding the disposition of the case shall be made 
to the Board of Trustees within thirty (30) calendar days of the Administrative Hearing 
Officer’s determination. 

 
 

Termination of Non “At-Will” Full Time Employees  
The Director of Human Resources, or designee, having first received a written directive from 
the CEO, shall terminate the employment of a full time employee who is not in the 
“Introductory Period”, upon notification in writing of such decision by registered or certified 
mail to the last known address of such employee. Proof of such written notice together with 
the proof of mailing, shall be kept and retained in the records of the Hospital.  
 
Prior to making the decision to terminate a full time employee in this category, and prior to 
notifying the employee of the decision, the CEO shall conduct an informal Pre-Determination 
Opportunity Meeting. The CEO shall notify the employee of the meeting by any appropriate 
means, giving the employee at least a week’s notice. The employee may waive his or her right 
to participate in the meeting. At the meeting, the Hospital’s Director of Human Resources, or 
designee, shall be in attendance. The employee’s supervisor shall also be in attendance, unless 
the employee plans to attend the meeting and objects to same. The employee is allowed to 
have a limited number of other individuals attend this meeting and to speak in support of the 
employee. 
 
At the Pre-Determination Opportunity Meeting, the CEO shall inform the employee that he or 
she is considering terminating the employee’s employment at the Hospital. The CEO’s reasons 
for considering the possible termination shall be shared with the employee. The employee shall 
be informed that this is an opportunity for the employee to share with the CEO information 
regarding his or her employment that the CEO can take into consideration prior to making a 
decision whether or not to terminate the employee. 
 
Subsequent to the Pre-Determination Opportunity Meeting, the CEO shall make a decision. 
Should the CEO make the decision to terminate the employee, the employee shall be notified 
as set forth above. If the employee decides to appeal the termination decision, the following 
procedure will take place. 
 

1. The employee may request a formal hearing before an Administrative Hearing 
Officer by requesting same in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the 
termination notice provided by the Hospital’s Human Resources Office. The request 
shall be made to the CEO. 

 

21/192



2. The CEO shall immediately notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of the request and 
shall forward the written request for a hearing to him or her. The Board of Trustees’ 
attorney shall then arrange for an Administrative Hearing Officer to conduct a pre-
hearing conference as soon as practical. 

 
3. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Hospital to ensure that these due 

process proceedings are conducted in a timely manner. The hearing shall be held 
within thirty (30) calendar days following the pre-hearing conference. 

 
4. The Hospital shall pay all administrative costs associated with the hearing including 

fees charged by the Hearing Officer and transcription services. The parties shall pay 
their own legal fees, if any. 

 
5. The Hospital’s Rules of Practice Governing Hearings shall be followed. 
 

Physicians  
An independent (non-employed) physician who raises a constitutional defense to a 
credentialing or privileging decision by MEC may avail himself of this Termination and Appeal 
process.  
  
An employed physician who raises a constitutional defense to a credentialing or privileging 
decision by MEC may avail himself of this Termination and Appeal process. 
An employed physician who raises a constitutional defense to an adverse employment action, 
such as termination under his/her Professional Services Contract, and believes the termination 
was based on the exercise of his or her constitutional rights, and/or that he or she has a 
reasonable expectation of continued employment, and/or that the action to terminate his or 
her employment would stigmatize him or her may avail himself of the Termination and Appeal 
process.  
  
 

 

22/192



23/192



24/192



25/192



26/192



27/192



28/192



29/192



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8766711 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Risk Management 
Reg. Standards: LD 03.09.01, MS 05.01.01, TJC 

RI.01.02.01, EP 21 

Sentinel Event Policy 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

TEXT 
Definitions 

I. Sentinel Event - An unexpected occurrence involving death or serious physical or psychological injury, or 

risk thereof.  Such events are called "sentinel" because they signal the need for immediate investigation 

and response.  Furthermore, a Sentinel Event can also be described as a patient safety event (not 

primarily related to the natural course of the patient’s illness or underlying condition) that reaches a 

patient and results in any of the following: 

A. Death 

B. Permanent Harm 

C. Severe Temporary Harm 

D. Any of the following events: 

1. Suicide of any patient receiving care, treatment, or services in a staffed around-the-clock care 

setting or within 72 hours of discharge, including from the organization’s emergency department 

(ED) 

2. Unanticipated death of a full-term infant 

3. Discharge of an infant to the wrong family 

4. Abduction of any patient receiving care, treatment, or services 

5. Any elopement (that is, unauthorized departure) of a patient from a staffed around-the- clock 

care setting (including the ED) leading to the death, permanent harm, or severe temporary harm 

of the patient 

6. Administration of blood or blood products having unintended ABO and non-ABO (Rh, Duffy, 

It is the goal of the Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County to provide the safe, high-quality care that our 

community deserves and expects from our institution.  We must constantly work to reduce the occurrence of 

serious safety events and Sentinel Events in our facility.  When a Sentinel Event occurs, it is our responsibility 

to carry out an expeditious and thorough investigation to reduce or eradicate future harm to patients, staff, and 

facility, as well as report the appropriate event to the necessary federal agencies. 

Sentinel Event Policy. Retrieved 10/26/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8766711/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 6

30/192

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

Kell, Lewis, and other clinically important blood groups) incompatibilities, hemolytic transfusion 

reactions, or transfusions resulting in severe temporary harm, permanent harm, or death 

7. Rape, assault (leading to death, permanent harm, or severe temporary harm), or homicide of 

any patient receiving care, treatment, or services while on site at the organization 

8. Rape, assault (leading to death, permanent harm, or severe temporary harm), or homicide of a 

staff member, licensed independent practitioner, visitor, or vendor while on site at the 

organization 

9. Surgery or other invasive procedure performed at the wrong site, on the wrong patient, or that is 

the wrong (unintended) procedure for a patient 

10. Unintended retention of a foreign object in a patient after an invasive procedure, including 

surgery 

11. Severe neonatal hyperbilirubinemia (bilirubin >30 milligrams/deciliter) 

12. Prolonged fluoroscopy with cumulative dose >1,500 rads to a single field or any delivery of 

radiotherapy to the wrong body region or >25% above the planned radiotherapy dose 

13. Fire, flame, or unanticipated smoke, heat, or flashes occurring during direct patient care caused 

by equipment operated and used by the hospital. To be considered a sentinel event, equipment 

must be in use at the time of the event; staff do not need to be present 

14. Any intrapartum (related to the birth process) maternal death 

15. Any event in which it's classification as a Sentinel Event is unclear 

E. For further in depth definitions, please review attached document "The Joint Commission Sentinel 

Event Policy". 

II. Severe Temporary Harm- critical, potentially life-threatening harm lasting for a limited time with no 

permanent residual, but requires transfer to a higher level of care/monitoring for a prolonged period of 

time, transfer to a higher level of care for a life-threatening condition, or additional major surgery, 

procedure, or treatment to resolve the condition. 

III. Sexual Abuse/Assault - is defined as non-consensual sexual contact involving a patient and another 

patient, staff member, or other perpetrator while being treated or on the premises of the organization, 

including oral, vaginal, or anal penetration or fondling of the patients' sex organ(s) by another individual’s 

hand, sex organ, or object. One or more of the following must be present to determine that it is a sentinel 

event: 

A. Any staff-witnessed sexual contact as described above 

B. Admission by the perpetrator that sexual contact, as described above, occurred on the premises 

C. Sufficient clinical evidence obtained by the organization to support allegations of unconsented sexual 

contact 

IV. Invasive Procedure-procedure in which skin or mucous membranes and/or connective tissue are incised 

or punctured, an instrument is introduced through a natural body orifice, or insertion of foreign material 

into the body for diagnostic or treatment-related purposes. Examples of invasive procedures include 

central line and chest tube insertions, biopsies and excisions, and all percutaneous procedures (e.g., 

cardiac, electrophysiology, interventional radiology). 

V. Occurrence Report - The online form submitted by staff to the Risk/Compliance Department as 

described in the Occurrence Reporting procedure 

Sentinel Event Policy. Retrieved 10/26/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8766711/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 6

31/192



DRAFT

VI. Root Cause Analysis (RCA) - A comprehensive systemic evaluation of an occurrence in an attempt to 

identify underlying causes or effects of a serious safety event. An RCA can also be described as an 

interdisciplinary team analysis to definitively determine the conditions that caused an event, with the 

understanding that if the undesirable condition where eliminated, changed, or controlled, the event could 

have been prevented. 

VII. Action plan - The product of a Root Cause Analysis that identifies the strategies that an organization 

plans to implement to reduce the risk of similar events occurring in the future. 

A. An appropriate action plan includes: 

1. Identification of changes that can be implemented to reduce risk, or formulates a rationale for 

not undertaking such changes. 

2. The plan should address responsibility for implementation, oversight, pilot testing if appropriate, 

time lines and methods for measuring the effectiveness of the recommended actions. 

3. Action plans will include the adequacy of staffing, including nursing staffing, in its analysis of 

possible causes 

Internal Reporting of Suspected Sentinel Events 

I. Identification of a Sentinel Event 

A. When a safety event, or occurrence takes place, the first course of action is to stabilize the patient or 

environment. 

B. Following the stabilization, any potential Sentinel Event is to be reported immediately to the Risk/

Compliance Department and/or Administrator On Call (AOC). An individual must also be designated 

to complete an Occurrence Report. 

C. Upon notification, this individual will undertake or direct an initial investigation to determine if the 

occurrence is indeed a Sentinel Event as defined by this policy. If the event is determined not to be 

sentinel in nature, it will be addressed in accordance with the established Occurrence Report 

procedure. 

D. If the event is determined to be sentinel in nature, then the Hospital shall respond as noted in this 

policy. 

II. Notification/Communication of Sentinel Events 

A. Upon determination that a Sentinel Event has occurred, the Risk/Compliance Department and/or 

available Administrator On Call will notify key representatives of the Hospital's leadership team. 

B. The Risk/Compliance Department or the AOC will also be responsible for notifying the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO) and Board President of the sentinel event. 

C. Per the Event Disclosure policy, the Risk/Compliance Department, in conjunction with the attending 

physician, and legal counsel will determine the proper time and method disclosure of the event to the 

patient and the family. 

III. Formation of a Sentinel Event Response Team 

A. A team is to be formed to respond to a Sentinel Event. The team should include, but not necessarily 

be limited to, the following: 

1. Appropriate representatives of administration, medical staff, legal, risk, quality, and public 

relations. 

Sentinel Event Policy. Retrieved 10/26/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8766711/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 6

32/192



DRAFT

2. Those individuals directly involved in the event 

B. The purpose of the team will be to coordinate an investigation into the incident, conduct a root cause 

analysis, and determine corrective actions to undertake in response to finding and/or identified 

opportunities for improvement. 

IV. Protection from Discovery 

A. All activities undertaken by the team should be done under the auspices of the quality management 

functions and medical staff quality assurance / peer review process. Other legal protections are to be 

implemented as determined by legal counsel. 

V. Immediate Remediation 

A. The team will undertake those actions necessary to remediate any immediate threat or likelihood of 

the Sentinel Event recurring. 

VI. Investigation of Event/Conducting a Root Cause Analysis 

A. The team is to undertake a thorough and credible Root Cause Analysis (RCA) of the Sentinel Event. 

The RCA should be completed within 45 days of the organization becoming aware of the event. 

1. A Root Cause Analysis may also be organized at the request of a leader in any department as a 

method to delineate cause in an occurrence of lesser significance. 

B. Facilitation must be done by 3 or more trained staff members in the following positions: 

1. Main facilitator(s) 

2. Staff member(s) to maintain the visual media 

3. Note taker(s) 

C. The RCA must follow the systems involved in the adverse event, not solely the staff or providers 

involved. 

D. All information discussed within the RCA is to be kept confidential within MHSC. 

E. Developing and Implementing an Action Plan 

1. Once the RCA has been completed, the team is to develop and implement a corrective action 

plan that will address both direct and root causes as well as – when appropriate -- special and 

common cause variation. Special cause is a factor that intermittently and unpredictably induces 

variation over and above what is inherent in the system. It often appears as an extreme point 

(such as a point beyond the control limits on a control chart) or some specific, identifiable 

pattern in data. Common cause is a factor that results from variation inherent in the process or 

system. The risk of a common cause can be reduced by redesigning the process or system. 

2. The action items are given due dates and responsible parties for completion. 

F. The notes/information from the RCA is documented in the the attached Appendix A: "RCA and 2.0 

Action Plan Worksheet" form. 

VII. Internal Reporting 

A. A summary, void of patient or practitioner identifiable information, of the Sentinel Event, the root 

cause(s) identified, and the corrective actions taken will be reported to the Patient Safety 

Committee, Quality Committee of the Board, Medical Executive Committee and to the Board of 

Trustees. The corrective action plan will also be communicated to other appropriate parties within the 

organization. 

Sentinel Event Policy. Retrieved 10/26/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8766711/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 6

33/192



DRAFT

External Reporting of Sentinel Events 

I. Our Hospital has made the decision to voluntarily report Sentinel Events to The Joint Commission for 

review. 

II. The CEO or their designee will be responsible for correspondence with outside agencies inquiring about 

sentinel, or other serious safety events. The decision to report a potential Sentinel Event to The Joint 

Commission for review will be made with prior knowledge of the CEO. 

III. A report that complies with The Joint Commission requirements will be compiled following the RCA that 

will be available for external reporting.  This report must include: 

A. Comprehensive Systemic Analysis of the event 

B. Action plans and time-line for completion 

IV. Risk/Compliance will prepare report described above and will collaborate with Quality/Accreditation 

regarding submission of report to The Joint Commission within 45 business days of becoming aware of 

event.  

A. Should The Joint Commission become aware of a Sentinel Event by reporting from a third party, the 

official report with follow-up information is required within 45 business days of becoming aware of the 

event 

Confidentiality 

I. Record Keeping 

A. A record of the investigation into the Sentinel Event, the subsequent RCA, and any performance 

improvement activities undertaken is to be maintained and should be constructed in such a way as to 

be afforded statutory protection from discovery. 

II. WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle 

blowing; peer review. 

A. Subsection A. "Each licensee [hospital, healthcare facility and health services] shall implement a 

quality management function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and services in 

accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management 

information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care services is 

confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the scope of the function of a quality 

management program participate in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or use of quality 

management information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program with 

regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from suit in any civil action based on such 

functions brought by a health care providers or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no 

event shall this immunity apply to any negligent or intention act or omission in the provision of care." 

III. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall be 

considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is protected by state 

and federal health care quality statutes. 

IV. Confidentiality shall be maintained based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping 

with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient 

safety work. 

V. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities will be 

handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

Sentinel Event Policy. Retrieved 10/26/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8766711/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 6

34/192



DRAFT

VI. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, organizational 

quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and reporting, and incident/occurrence 

reporting W.S 35-17-105 

VII. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information consistent 

with policy and established law 

References 

Attachments 

Appendix A: RCA 2.0 and Action Plan Worksheet (non-fillable) 

The Joint Commission Sentinel Event Policy - Updated 1.2020 

Replaces: Sentinel Events, SPP 121 

I. United Regional. (LRG Healthcare. (August, 2020). Sentinel Event Policy & Procedure. Unpublished internal 

document, United Regional. 

 

Approval: MEC 09/22/2020; Quality Committee of the Board 10/21/2020; Board of Trustees 

Sentinel Event Policy. Retrieved 10/26/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8766711/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 6

35/192



Draft 2 7/18/20 
 

Guidelines for Negotiating Non-Physician Provider Agreements 

Purpose 
This Board of Trustees (Board) policy authorizes the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to recruit 

Non-Physician Providers and negotiate their Agreements within the guidelines set forth below.  

Definition 
As defined by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid, Non-Physician Providers include 

advanced practice nurses, physician assistants, certified nurse midwives, and other licensed 

providers who are not physicians.  

The CEO is directly responsible for the hiring of Non-Physician Providers within these guidelines 

provided by the Board pursuant to its oversight responsibilities. 

In order to meet the community’s health care needs, it is important to attract and retain 

qualified Non-Physician Providers. Recruiting them to practice in rural areas is often 

challenging; therefore, these parameters are designed to balance the needs of the Hospital and 

the health care needs of the community with an Agreement that is attractive to Non-Physician 

Providers. 

Prior to submitting the Agreement to the Non-Physician Provider for his/her acceptance the 

CEO will provide a detailed report based on these guidelines to the Board for its final approval. 

Guidelines  

1. Non-Physician Provider compensation 

a. Based between the median and 75th percentile of the current MGMA pay scale, according to 
years of experience, with the exception of special circumstances when the CEO may need to 
offer higher compensation for difficult to fill specialties or on renewal Agreements where it is in 
the best interest of the Hospital and community to go higher to retain said Non-Physician 
Provider. 

b. Incentive compensation is not offered. 

c. On call pay is not offered. 

2. Benefits 

a. Health, Dental and Vision insurance will be offered to the Non-Physician Provider and their 
family at a range based on a sliding scale of employee’s hourly range. 

b. Malpractice insurance will be provided at the Hospital’s expense. The Hospital shall obtain 
and maintain professional malpractice insurance to cover liabilities of both the Non-Physician 
Provider and the Hospital resulting from the practice of medicine by the Non-Physician Provider 

36/192



Draft 2 7/18/20 
 

on behalf of the Hospital. Coverage may be on an occurrence or claim made basis. If coverage is 
on a claim made basis, then upon termination of the Agreement, the Hospital shall purchase tail 
coverage, if such coverage is not included as part of the Non-Physician Provider’s subsequent 
insurance. 

c. PTO shall be accrued at a rate of 30, 35, 40, 45 or 50 days based on the CEO discretion on 
both new and renewal Agreements. Non-Physician Providers shall also receive 5 days of 
continuing medical education (CME) per year. PTO will be capped at 320 hours. No CME will be 
carried over into the next calendar year. Accrued PTO will be cashed out upon separation. 

d. CME stipend of $5,000 per year. 

e. Sign on bonus/retention bonus of $15,000 with the exception of special circumstances when 
the CEO may need to offer a higher sign on bonus or retention bonus for difficult to fill 
specialties or on renewal Agreements where it is in the best interest of the Hospital and 
community to go higher to retain said Non-Physician Provider. 

f. A deferred benefit/Roth 457 retirement plan will be offered to the Non-Physician Provider 
immediately (1st of the following quarter of their start date).  Non-Physician Provider may start 
contributing to their 457 (deferred or and/or Roth) plan on the 1st day of the next quarter of 
their start date.  The CEO may agree to match the maximum contribution limit. 

g. Student loan repayment of up to $20,000 per year for a maximum of $60,000 over a three-
year period with the exception of special circumstances when the CEO may need to offer a 
higher student loan repayment for difficult to fill specialties or on renewal Agreements where it 
is in the best interest of the Hospital and community to go higher to retain said Non-Physician 
Provider. 

h. Relocation allowance of $10,000 for the cost of relocation that the Non-Physician Provider 
can apply to rent (6 Months) or moving services at his/her discretion. All receipts for moving 
services must be turned into the Medical Staff Services Office for payment. 

3. Terms and Termination Provisions 

a. The Agreement may be terminated by either party, without cause, upon 90 days written 
notice to the other party. 

b. Hospital may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to Non-Physician 
Provider effective immediately for reasons which shall be deemed for cause and shall be stated 
with particularity in the written notice to Non-Physician Provider. 

c. Non-Physician provider shall be required to abide by all of the Hospital Human Resource 
policies and procedures during the term or their Agreement.  

37/192



Draft 2 7/18/20 
 

4. Restrictive Covenants 

a. Covenant not to compete during the term of Non-Physician Provider’s employment by 
Hospital within Sweetwater County for one full year from the date that they terminate 
employment with MHSC.     

38/192



Draft 2 7/18/20 
 

Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts 

Purpose 
This Board of Trustees (Board) policy authorizes the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to recruit 

Physicians and negotiate their Contracts within the guidelines set forth below. 

Policy 
The CEO is directly responsible for hiring Physicians and reports to the Board on medical staff 

recruitment and performance. In order to fulfill its oversight responsibility, the Board has 

established guidelines within which the CEO shall recruit Physicians and negotiate their 

contracts. These guidelines are based on federal physician recruitment and compensation 

statutes and regulations.     

In order to meet the community’s health care needs, it is important to attract and retain 

qualified Physicians. Recruiting Physicians to practice in rural areas is often challenging; 

therefore, these parameters are designed to balance the needs of the Hospital and the health 

care needs of the community with a Contract that is attractive to Physicians. 

Prior to submitting the Contract to the Physician for his/her acceptance the CEO will provide a 

detailed report based on these guidelines to the Board for its final approval. 

Guidelines 

1. Physician Compensation 

a. Based between the median and 75th percentile of the current MGMA pay scale, according to 
years of experience, with the exception of special circumstances when the CEO may need to 
offer higher compensation for difficult to fill specialties or on renewal Contracts where it is in 
the best interest of the Hospital and community to go higher to retain said Physician. 

b. Incentive compensation is not offered. 

c. On call pay in certain specialties is necessary and details will be provided to the Board when 
requesting Contract final approval. 

2. Benefits 

a. Health, Dental and Vision insurance will be offered to the Physician and their family at a 
range based on a sliding scale of employee’s hourly range. 

b. Malpractice insurance will be provided at the Hospital’s expense. The Hospital shall obtain 
and maintain professional malpractice insurance to cover liabilities of both the Physician and 
the Hospital resulting from the practice of medicine by Physician on behalf of the Hospital. 
Coverage may be on an occurrence or claim made basis. If coverage is on a claim made basis, 

39/192



Draft 2 7/18/20 
 

then upon termination of the Contract, the Hospital shall purchase tail coverage, if such 
coverage is not included as part of the Physician’s subsequent insurance. 

c. PTO shall be accrued at a rate of 30, 35, 40, 45 or 50 days based on the CEO discretion on 
both new and renewal Contracts. Physician shall also receive 5 days of continuing medical 
education (CME) per year. PTO will be capped at 320 hours.  No CME will be carried over into 
the next calendar year. Accrued PTO will be cashed out upon separation. 

d. CME stipend of $5,000 per year. 

e. Sign on bonus/retention bonus of $25,000 with the exception of special circumstances when 
the CEO may need to offer a higher sign on bonus or retention bonus for difficult to fill 
specialties or on renewal Contracts where it is in the best interest of the Hospital and 
community to go higher to retain said Physician. 

f. A deferred benefit/Roth 457 retirement plan will be offered to Physician immediately (1st of 
the following quarter of their start date).  Physician may start contributing to their 457 
(deferred or and/or Roth) plan on the 1st day of the next quarter of their start date.  The CEO 
may agree to match the maximum IRS contribution limit. 

g. Student loan repayment of up to $30,000 per year for a maximum of $90,000 over a three-
year period with the exception of special circumstances when the CEO may need to offer a 
higher student loan repayment for difficult to fill specialties or on renewal Contracts where it is 
in the best interest of the Hospital and community to go higher to retain said Physician. 

h. Relocation allowance of $10,000 for the cost of relocation that the Physician can apply to 
rent (6 Months) or moving services at Physicians discretion. All receipts for moving services 
must be turned into the Medical Staff Services Office for payment. 

3. Terms and Termination Provisions 

a. The Contract may be terminated by either party, without cause, upon 90 days written notice 
to the other party. 

b. Hospital may terminate this Contract immediately upon written notice to Physician effective 
immediately for reasons which shall be deemed for cause and shall be stated with particularity 
in the written notice to Physician. 

c. Physician shall be required to abide by all of the Hospital Human Resource policies and 
procedures during the term or their Contract. 

4. Restrictive Covenants 

40/192



Draft 2 7/18/20 
 

a. Covenant not to compete during the term of Physician’s employment by Hospital and for a 
period of one full year thereafter at any location within Sweetwater County. 

 

 

 

41/192



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8496285 
Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: General - Housewide 
Reg. Standards: APR 09.01.01, APR 09.02.01, 

EC 04.01.01, IC 01.03.01, LD 
02.01.01, LD 03.01.01, LD 
03.02.01, LD 03.03.01, LD 
03.04.01, LD 03.05.01, LD 
03.07.01, LD 03.09.01, LD 
04.01.01, LD 04.01.05, LD 
04.01.10, MM 07.01.03, MM 
08.01.01, MS 09.01.01, NR 
02.01.01, PI 01.01.01, PI 
02.01.01, PI.03.01.01, RI 
01.01.01, RI 01.01.03, RI 
01.02.01, RI 01.03.01, RI 
01.05.01, RI 02.0.01 

Patient Safety Plan 

Statement of Purpose 

Introduction 

Purpose 

I. Acknowledgement of risks to patient safety such that medical and human errors will occur in a complex 

environment 

II. Recognition and reporting of errors and risks to patient safety within a Just Culture 

III. Minimization of blame or unfair treatment for reporting or involvement in errors 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater (MHSC) strives for staff to feel supported, safe and empowered in speaking 

up about errors, near misses and related opportunities for improvement. MHSC promotes a “Just Culture” of 

safety which balances a non-punitive learning environment with equally important need to hold people 

accountable for their actions.  Just Culture is a value supported system of accountability that allows individuals 

to report occurrences in an atmosphere of trust. 

MHSC is committed to providing compassionate, high-quality care with a strong culture of safety for the best 

patient outcomes. Our objective is to support a culture of safety for our patients and workers, as well as 

supporting an unrelenting commitment to safety and to do no harm. This culture allows our organization to 

consistently identify opportunities to improve performance and increase safety, while maintaining a 

commitment to responsible stewardship of resources as aligned with MHSC's mission, vision, values, and 

strategic objectives. The Patient Safety Plan cultivates an organization-wide approach and provides a 

coordinated and collaborative effort to patient safety. 

The purpose of MHSC’s Patient Safety Plan is to improve patient safety and reduce risk to patients through an 

environment that encourages: 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 7

42/192

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

IV. Investigations and analyses with a focus on process and system improvements 

V. Utilization of a standardized tool which offers a clear, equitable and transparent process for recognizing 

and separating blameless errors from unsafe or reckless act (Appendix A-Just Culture Algorithms) 

VI. Collection and analysis of data to ensure proper prioritization of process improvements 

VII. Support initiatives that promote patient-centered care and involvement 

VIII. Open communication regarding patient safety risks, events and system-based improvements 

IX. Open communication with patients and families about medical errors that occur (See Disclosure of 

Medical Events Policy) 

X. Organizational learning about patient safety occurrences 

Scope 

I. Education is a key strategy for prevention of patient safety issues based on needs specific to the 

organization 

II. Risk identification and analysis through trending of confidential patient safety occurrence information from 

individual event reports and aggregate data reports 

III. At least one high-risk patient safety process selected at a minimum of every 18 months for proactive risk 

assessment. The following may be considered, but not limited to, when selecting a proactive risk 

assessment: 

A. The Joint Commission Sentinel event alerts 

B. Core Measure performance data 

C. Occurrence reporting information 

D. Performance Improvement Priority Matrix (see Performance Improvement and Patient Safety-PIPS-

Plan) 

E. Information from external sources: state, federal and current literature 

IV. Utilization of patient satisfaction survey data to identify patient’s perception of safety issues 

V. Regular evaluation of staffs’ perception of the organizations’ culture of safety using valid and reliable 

survey tools 

A. Prioritization and implementation of changes identified by results of survey 

Definitions 

The scope of the Patient Safety Program encompasses the patient population, visitors, volunteers, medical 

staff and staff. The program addresses maintenance and improvement in patient safety issues in every 

department throughout the facility. 

At-Risk Behavior: A behavioral choice where risk is not recognized or is mistakenly believed to be justified; 

failure to exercise expected care. 

Reckless Behavior: A behavioral choice that consciously disregards a visible, substantial and unjustifiable risk 

that the individual knows or should have known that potential harm would result from the action; intentional risk 

taking. 

Behavioral Drift: A change in behavioral patterns resulting from gradual and subtle adjustments over time. 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 7

43/192



DRAFT

Coaching:  A supportive discussion with the employee regarding the need to engage in safe behavioral 

choices. 

Console: Show compassion for; commiserate with. 

Counseling: A first step disciplinary action; putting the employee on notice that performance is unacceptable. 

Disciplinary Action:  An action beyond remedial, up to and including punitive action or termination. 

Human Error: An error of inadvertently doing something other than what should have been done; a slip, lapse 

or mistake. 

Impossibility: A condition outside of one’s control that prevents duty from being fulfilled. 

Knowingly:  Having knowledge of (in the context of a “Just Culture”, knowing that harm is practically certain to 

occur). 

Purposeful: Deliberate (in the context of a “Just Culture”, a conscious objective to cause harm). 

Performance Shaping Factors:  Attributes that impact the likelihood of human errors or behavioral drift. 

Punitive Action: Punitive deterrent designed to cause an individual or group to refrain from undesired 

behavioral choices. 

Remedial Action: Actions taken to aid employee performance including education, training, and assignments 

appropriate to knowledge and skill. 

Substantial and Unjustifiable Risk:  A behavior where the risk of harm outweighs the social benefit attached to 

the behavior. 

Willful violation: Behavior in which an individual knew or foresaw the result of the action, but went ahead and 

did the action anyway. 

Infrastructure failure: An undesirable or unintended event, occurrence or situation involving the infrastructure of 

a medical facility or the discontinuation or significant disruption of a service which could seriously compromise 

patient safety. 

Patient safety: Is the prevention of errors and adverse effects to patients that are associated with health care. 

Safety culture: Is the product of individual and group beliefs, values, attitudes, perceptions, competencies and 

patterns of behavior that determine the organizations commitment to quality and patient safety. 

Non-punitive reporting: A reporting system where individuals are not punished for reporting adverse events, 

close calls and hazards, and shall not incur repercussions for sharing details of an event. 

Disclosure: The process of communicating an adverse event or close call to patient /substitute decision maker. 

Hazardous or unsafe conditions: A circumstance (other than a patient’s own disease process or condition) that 

increases the probability of and adverse event, as it relates to patient safety. 

Zero tolerance for reckless behavior:  MHSC will not tolerate any reckless behavior or willful violations that 

may place a patient, provider or staff at risk, or results in abuse. These behaviors will result in disciplinary 

action or termination. 

For further definitions refer to Occurrence Reporting, Sentinel Event Policy, Disclosure of Adverse Medical 

Event 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 7

44/192



DRAFT

Organization and Accountability 

I. Hold Senior Leadership accountable for promoting and modeling behaviors consistent with Just Culture, 

as well as overseeing action plans to improve patient safety throughout the organization 

II. Review annual written report provided by Patient Safety Committee 

I. Set expectations for improvement work based on results from the Culture of Safety survey 

II. Participate in regular safety rounds 

III. Encourage communication of ongoing efforts to improve safety in the organization 

I. Communicate definition of a patient safety event throughout the organization 

II. Provide the foundation for an environment that supports Just Culture and patient safety by: 

A. Promoting learning 

B. Motivating staff to uphold a fair and Just Culture of safety 

C. Providing a transparent environment in which quality measures and patient harms are freely shared 

with staff 

D. Modeling professional behavior 

E. Addressing intimidating behavior that might undermine the safety culture 

III. When a patient safety event occurs, provide resources and mechanisms for support as necessary 

A. Examples include but are not limited to, debriefing, counseling and resources provided through the 

employee assistance program 

IV. Ensure completion of performance improvements and actions plans 

V. Disseminate lessons learned from safety events 

I. Improve the culture of safety and accountability by employing a “see something, say something, do 

something” approach 

II. Document events through designated reporting software and actively engage in related performance 

improvement efforts 

III. Constantly hold patient safety at the forefront and continue to advocate for changes where opportunities 

are identified 

I. Review the progress of improvements monthly 

II. Evaluate patient safety data for trends 

III. Actively participate in patient safety event investigation or designate a group for the action item 

IV. Report high level patient safety summary to Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) 

Governing Board 

Senior Leadership Team 

Leadership Team 

Staff and Volunteers 

Patient Safety Committee 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 7

45/192



DRAFT

Committee monthly 

V. Report results of Failure Mode Effects Analysis (FMEA) and Root Cause Analysis (RCA) to PIPS and 

Quality Committee of the Board as they occur 

VI. Review and evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the Patient Safety Plan annually and present to 

PIPS Committee and Quality Committee of the Board 

VII. Environment of care specific findings will be addressed by the Environment of Care Committee 

Data 

Communication 

I. Ensuring a nonpunitive approach to patient safety event reporting 

II. Educating staff on identifying patient safety events that should be reported 

III. Providing timely feedback regarding actions taken on patient safety events 

I. Inappropriate words (profane, insulting, intimidating, demeaning, humiliating, or abusive language) 

II. Shaming others for negative outcomes 

III. Unjustified negative comments or complaints about another provider’s care 

IV. Refusal to comply with known and generally accepted practice standards, the refusal of which may 

prevent other providers from delivering quality care 

V. Not working collaboratively or cooperatively with other members of the interdisciplinary team 

VI. Creating rigid or inflexible barriers to requests for assistance or cooperation 

VII. Not returning pages or calls promptly 

Confidentiality 
I. 

Monitor data that will be further specified and defined in the Patient Safety Committee Charter. 

MHSC is focused on creating an environment that engages frontline staff in internal reporting by: 

Information will be shared with the appropriate groups throughout the organization, including opportunities for 

improvement, actions to be taken and lessons learned. 

In order to facilitate and encourage reporting of patient safety events, leaders and staff need to ensure that 

intimidating or unprofessional behaviors within the hospital are addressed, so as not to inhibit others from 

reporting safety concerns. Leaders will educate staff and hold them accountable for professional behavior. 

This includes the adoption and promotion of MHSC Code of Conduct that defines acceptable behavior as well 

as behaviors that undermine a culture of safety. 

Intimidating and disrespectful behaviors disrupt the culture of safety and prevent collaboration, communication, 

and teamwork, which is required for safe and highly reliable patient care. Disrespect is not limited to outbursts 

of anger that humiliate a member of the health care team; it can manifest in many forms, including the 

following: 

WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle 

blowing; peer. 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 7

46/192



DRAFT

A. Subsection A. "Each licensee [hospital, healthcare facility and health services] shall implement a 

quality management function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and services in 

accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management 

information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care services is 

confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the scope of the function of a quality 

management program participate in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or use of quality 

management information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program with 

regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from suit in any civil action based on such 

functions brought by a health care providers or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no 

event shall this immunity apply to any negligent or intention act or omission in the provision of care." 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall be 

considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is protected by state 

and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping 

with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient 

safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities will be 

handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, organizational 

quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and reporting, and incident/occurrence 

reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information consistent 

with policy and established law 

REFERENCES 
Quality and Patient Safety. (2019, April 1). Retrieved June 15, 2020, from http://www.ahrq.gov/qual/

patientsafetyculture/ 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement, Develop a Culture of Safety. (2019) http://www.ihi.org/IHI/Topics/
PatientSafety/SafetyGeneral/Changes/Develop+a+Culture+of+S afety.htm 

The Joint Commission, Patient Safety Chapters. (2019)  https://www.jointcommission.org/-/media/tjc/

documents/standards/ps-chapters/20190701_2_camh_04a_ps.pdf 

Saint Mary Medical Center. (2019) Just Culture. Unpublished internal document 

Main Line Health. (2019) Patient Safety Plan. Unpublished internal document 

St. Johns Health. (2019) Patient Safety Program. Unpublished internal document 

LRGHealthcare. (August, 2019). Patient Safety Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document 

Approval: PIPS Committee 10/13/2020; MEC 10/27/2020; Quality Committee of the Board 10/21/2020 ; Board 

of Trustees 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 7

47/192



DRAFT

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Patient Safety Plan. Retrieved 11/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8496285/.

Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 7 of 7

48/192



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…November Quality Committee Meeting 
Date:  November 30, 2020 
 
Trustee Mathey led a discussion on the state statute regarding confidentiality associated with 
hospital quality issues. 
 
Dr. Quickenden gave a report on the Annual Staffing Adequacy Assessment. Surveys were 
conducted in August and September, 2020 regarding skill mix, staffing levels, and 
competency/training and supervision. It was pointed out that MHSC needs to prepare this 
report each year in the event CMS or the Joint Commission requests it. 
 
Dr. Quickenden and Ms. Jackson reported on the task they were given to group the Quality 
consultant’s recommendations into priority tiers. It was noted that many of the consultant’s 
recommendations have already been implemented. Work will commence and continue first on 
the highest priority recommendations with quarterly reports provided the Quality Committee. 
Where physicians are included in the recommendation, they will be involved in the work to 
address the recommendation. 
 
The Chief Nursing Officer, Ms. Clevenger presented her doctoral project regarding patient 
pneumonia readmission rates. She talked about the 12 step tool kit that was created. The staff 
is very happy that the tool kit associated with the project can be implemented at MHSC early 
next year. The Committee voted to approve the project. 
 
Dr. Poyer talked about the Covid-19 situation at MHSC. The staff has noted some things that 
can be done to improve communication. The Hospital has done a great job in managing the 
daily challenges associated with Covid-19. 
 
The Committee went into Executive Session to discuss some matters classified as confidential. 
No action was taken after the session. 

49/192



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   11/27/2020 

 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

November 18, 2020 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Marty Kelsey (Quality Board Chair), Kara Jackson (Quality 

Director), Richard Mathey (Board Member), Irene Richardson (CEO), Tami Love 

(CFO), Ann Clevenger (CNO), Dr. Melinda Poyer (CMO), Dr. Kari Quickenden 

(CCO), Leslie Taylor (Clinic Director), Dr. Banu Symington, 

 

Non-voting Members:  Cindy Nelson, Corey Worden, Noreen Hove, Karali Plonsky, 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members: Dr. Cielette Karn 

  

Non-voting Members: Gabrielle Seilbach, Kalpana Pokhrel,  

 

Chair:   Mr. Marty Kelsey  

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Mr. Kelsey presented the Agenda for approval. Mr. Mathey motioned to approve, Ms. 

Richardson seconded the motion. Mr. Kelsey then present last month’s Quality Committee 

Minutes from October 21, 2020 for approval. Dr. Quickenden motioned to approve and Ms. 

Richardson seconded the motion. Both were approved unanimously. 

 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Clevenger shared a story shared from another meeting regarding an end of life event. Due 

to COVID families are not able to be with loved one at end of life, but our Case Managers 

worked diligently to get this patient home on Hospice so family could be together. 

 

Mr. Kelsey shared a story of a young couple he knows, where the wife was recently diagnosed 

with cancer. The diagnosis is difficult enough but traveling just adds to that burden and how 

glad they were for Sweetwater Regional Cancer Center. 

 

Old Business 

Mr. Mathey lead a discussion on State Statute 35-2-910. A statute that leads any Quality 

Management program in a healthcare setting, and pertains directly to all quality and patient 

safety data, materials and information as private and confidential. 

 

New Business 

Dr. Quickenden reviewed the Annual Staffing Adequacy Assessment stating this came out of 

our Quality review by Mella, a consultant, in August. It was a finding by Mella that we didn’t 

have a Staffing Adequacy Assessment to produce for Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 

Services (CMS) or The Joint Commission (TJC). Dr. Quickenden noted that the nursing 

departments have a good handle on this, but we found that many of the other clinical and 

non-clinical areas don’t and the staffing mix for many of these departments can affect patient 

care. Mella provided us with a short survey, that was sent out to departments to assess their 

staffing mix, levels and needs. Dr. Quickenden noted this report will be assessed on a case by 

 

50/192



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   11/27/2020 

case basis between Department and Senior leaders as issues arise, but will be also be reviewed 

annually by the Quality Department. 

 

Dr. Symington noted that one opportunity for improvement listed on the survey report was EMR 

use and questioned how it connected. Dr. Quickenden stated is was about the different systems 

we work in, and that not all areas are familiar with other area’s systems. 

 

Dr. Quickenden next reviewed the Quality Program Consultant Report Tier Assignment. This list is 

subjective and based on our findings and assessment of priorities for the Quality Program as 

related to our reporting responsibilities for CMS and TJC. Dr. Quickenden suggested bringing this 

report back to Quality Committee quarterly, both Mr. Kelsey and Mr. Mathey agreed follow up 

would be meaningful.  

 

Mr. Kelsey questioned how quality concerns that include Providers are addressed. Dr. 

Quickenden stated Dr. Poyer assists through MEC by adding to agenda for discussion and 

solution. Mr. Kelsey recommended including the Consultant’s recommendation report in the 

Quality Committee packet to help familiarize and remind us in the future. Both Mr. Kelsey and 

Mr. Mathey recognized the hard work that had gone into this report as evidenced by the large 

“completed” section. 

 

Ms. Clevenger presented her DNP Project – The Impact of the Re-Engineered Discharge (RED) 

Toolkit on Patient Pneumonia Readmission Rates for approval, which has already been through 

PIPs and the Patient Steering Committee. Ms. Clevenger noted the Toolkit was created with 12 

steps to ensure patients went home with the information and resources needed following 

Pneumonia admissions. The Quality department has been instrumental in researching and 

developing a process that will be implemented on Med/Surg and ICU. The plan is to implement 

in January 2021. Implementation will take 4-6 weeks, with gathering and review of information to 

be presented in April. 

 

Mr. Kelsey requested a motion to approve Ms. Clevenger’s DNP Project – The Impact of the Re-

Engineered Discharge (RED) Toolkit on Patient Pneumonia Readmission Rates. Mr. Mathey 

motioned to approve, Dr. Symington seconded the motion, motion was unanimously approved. 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer gave the update in Dr. Karn’s absence. We currently have 7 COVID+ patients in 

house, a sub group of Incident Command including Dr. Poyer, Dr. Karn, Kim White, Incident 

Commander and Melissa Anderson, ED Director discussed and updated “Plan Z” our response 

to COVID-19. This plan was developed early on during COVID and many situational changes 

since have necessitated a need for an update to better serve our county. Dr. Poyer noted she 

had had a change to evaluate another hospital system and how they communicated with 

patients. We would like to add more patient navigators to assist with our communication 

process.  

 

Mr. Kelsey questioned the capacity of our hospital for COVID+ patients. Dr. Poyer ran through 

potential numbers and space, but stated this is really a “moving target” based on the staff we 

have available. Mr. Kelsey further questioned the potential for more staff. Dr. Poyer stated other 

hospitals in Wyoming are in more dire straits than we are at this point, but that the Governor has 

developed a task force to address staffing issues. Dr. Poyer stated we have struggled with 

51/192



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   11/27/2020 

staffing and the toll from COVID, but noted that our process seems to be effective as we have 

not seen staff to staff transmission. 

 

Dr. Poyer noted COVID has created an exceptional “mission moment” for our facility, with the 

coming together of the entire facility to create and implement plans to keep our staff and 

community safe.  

 

Consent Agenda  

Informational items for review and discussion was presented by Mr. Kelsey. None were brought 

forth for discussion. 

 

Executive Session 

Mr. Kelsey requested a motion to move into Executive session to discuss quality information 

considered confidential by law. Mr. Mathey made a motion to approve, Ms. Richardson 

seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

 

The Quality Committee reconvened at 09:39 a.m. with no further action.  Mr. Kelsey requested a 

motion to resume the Quality Meeting. Motion to resume was made by Mr. Mathey and 

seconded by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.  

 

Mr. Kelsey thanked everyone for joining the meeting. 

Mr. Mathey motioned to adjourn the meeting, Ms. Richardson seconded the motion. 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:40 am 

 

Next Meeting    December 16, 2020 via ZOOM 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

52/192



Quality Committee of the Board 

Quality, Risk, Safety, & Accreditation Summary  

November 2020 

 

Three Priorities FY 2021 

1. HCAHPS/Patient Experience 

2. High Level Disinfection  

3. Culture of Safety Survey Results and Action Plans 

 

1) Star Rating 

a. There are seven categories within the Star Rating and they are as follows: mortality, 

readmission, safety of care, efficient use of medical imaging, timeliness of care, patient 

experience (see bullet c.) and effectiveness of care. Each of these seven categories 

contain several data metrics. Data within the following categories continues to trend in 

right direction: mortality. Opportunities for improvement exist within the efficient use of 

medical imaging category. OP-10 Abdomen CT with and without Contrast – Project 

Team is working on improvements of process at this time, will continue to monitor. June 

and July’s data within the readmission category has increased, an in-depth analysis of the 

data has been completed and did not yield any trending gaps in our processes. Case 

Management and Care Transition continue to monitor the data and their processes. Data 

for August has decreased, and will continue to monitor. September data has increased 

again and our CNO’s DNP project should begin to address improvements related to 

pneumonia readmissions. An opportunity for improvement exists within the safety of care 

category, specifically for the CDI (Clostridioides difficile infection) measure, Infection 

Preventionist working on improvements with nursing departments and the medical staff.  

b. Within the Timeliness of Care category, Ed-2b: ED Median Admit Decision Time to ED 

Departure Time has seen an increase in the data over the past few months. The most 

recent month of data has trended down again. The project team is aware and is 

identifying and developing thresholds for each part of the part of the Patient Flow 

process. These thresholds have been identified and were implemented on September 1st. 

September data has trended down, so will continue to monitor. Within the Effectiveness 

of Care category, we continue to see fluctuations with the data for Core Sep1 – Early 

Management Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock. Scorecards identifying opportunities 

for improvement continue to be sent to physicians and nurses. Sepsis team developed 

new visual tool to ensure all elements of bundle are met in a timely manner and rounding 

and education have taken place. The sepsis project team continues to work towards their 

new goal related to improving compliance with ordering and obtaining blood cultures 

within specified timeframe. Leadership of Sepsis Work Group is to be determined, will 

update when this has been clarified. Improvement work continues for Core OP-23 – Head 

CT/MRI Results for Stroke Pts within 45 minutes of Arrival.  

c. Patient Experience-HCAHPS: The “Inpatient HCAHPS” is the survey data that affects 

our Star Rating and Value Based Purchasing reimbursement program. This survey 

53/192



includes OB, ICU, and Med-Surg. Please see the “Introduction to Press Ganey- 

Condensed Version” document for further information.  

2) Risk/Safety 

a. Risk - The number of occurrence reports continue to be about the same amount reported. 

No trends in falls. There have been no reported weight-based medication errors for the 

month of October. We will continue to monitor this issue to ensure changes made are 

working. 

b. Safety – An interdisciplinary team is working to create a new safety committee. 

Development of charter, agenda, and scheduling recurring meetings is underway. The 

Patient Safety Plan has been approved by PIPS Committee, MEC, and Quality 

Committee of the Board. This plan will be presented to the Board for review in 

December. The Culture of Safety Survey was administered in June, and results have been 

analyzed. Results were presented to Leadership, Town Halls, and Quality Workshop of 

Board in October. Next steps is to share individual department data in November and 

early December. Improvement work, goals, etc. will be addressed by the Patient Safety 

Committee. 

3)  PI Standards 

a. Our PI Standards within the dashboard include data metrics defined by Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), as well as 

priorities identified by MHSC on the Performance Improvement and Patient Safety 

(PIPS) plan.  

4) Accreditation 

a. We continue to be in our Joint Commission triennial survey window and a survey will 

occur soon, however this is also dependent upon the COVID 19 situation in our County. 

CSR Committee continues to meet weekly in order to prepare. There are some standards 

that need work to come into compliance and this work is underway. “Joint Points” 

continue to be shared with the hospital and clinics.  

 

 

54/192



HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD NOVEMBER 2020  

 Ed Tardoni 

The Human Resources Committee met in a Zoom format this month.   

HR DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual HR reports are included in the Board packet.  The turnover and rehire rates continue to be 

better than national averages. 

The open position report for November shows a dramatic increase in open positions.  This increase is 

the result of seeking additional employees to help with the Covid workload.  You may note a new 

position title.  Housekeeping positions are now titled EVS for Environmental Services. 

POLICY ACTIVITY 

The HR Committee continued activity on the following policies 

POLICY HOLD RESCINDED     (by unanimous vote) 

The HR Committee wishes to RESCIND THE HOLD RECCOMENDATION for the following pending policies: 

 Termination and Appeals 

 Introductory Period 

 Corrective Action 

 Board Appeals Procedure  

The committee was updated on progress related to making all of these policies consistent.  

TERMINATION AND APPEALS POLICY      (by unanimous vote) Do not pass recommendation. 

The Committee reviewed the document which updated the proposed policy to be consistent with the 

others generated by the Ad Hoc subcommittee.  The package is now complete and constitutes a 

fundamental step change in employee relations approach.  After considering the effectiveness of 

existing policies the committee arrived at a DO NOT PASS recommendation to the Board.  This 

recommendation applies to the entire policy and not just the latest proposed changes. 

INTRODUCTORY PERIOD (under ongoing review) 

The HR Committee has proposed revisions to this pending policy in hand.  No decision was arrived at 

during this meeting.  The Board should be aware that the HR Committee considers this policy not yet 

ready for a Board vote. 

POLITICAL ACTIVITY POLICY (progress update) 

The Hospital Group has been selected to investigate proposed approaches to employees seeking office.  

No activity to report at this time. 

 

 

55/192



WORK PLACE VIOLENCE POLICY (progress update) 

The proposed Work Place Violence Policy contained a statement about a Work Place Violence 

Prevention Plan.  That plan did not exist.  The CEO assigned the HR Director to assemble a team to 

generate the plan.  The team has been named.  As of this date there is no activity to report.  The policy 

will be sent to the Board for consideration once a Work Place Violence Prevention Plan is in place, 

 

NEXT MEETING 

The HR Committee meets the third Monday of the month.   However, for December the Committee will 

meet the second Monday of the month. That would be December 14th, 2020 at 3:00 P.M most likely by 

Zoom 

 

 

56/192



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday – November 16, 2020 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Attending by Zoom: Barbara Sowada & Ed Tardoni 
Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Guests by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Shawn Bazzanella, Ruthann Wolfe, Cindy Nelson, Kari Quickenden, Tami 
Love, Ann Clevenger, Taylor Jones 
 
Ed called the meeting to order. He said he is aware the Board passed a thing about recordkeeping. He 
said Amber’s people always keep the notes and do an excellent job. Ed said he has been at fault because 
he has not done a roll call. Amber completed the roll call. Ed asked to add a “C” to the agenda for a 
release of hold recommendation. Barbara said she had a couple of things to add from old business. She 
asked for a status report of the workplace violence policy and a status report on the political activity 
policy. Ed said he would like to turn over the Chair role to Barbara at the time of the Term and Appeals 
discussion and then he will reassume the Chair for the vote. Ed said he wants to give everyone the 
chance to discuss. The motion to approve the agenda as amended was made by Barbara, second by 
Irene. Motion carried. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
I. MINUTES APPROVED: 
 

The motion to approve the October 19, 2020, meeting minutes was made by Barbara, second by 
Suzan. Motion carried.  

 
II. TURNOVER REPORT: 
 

Amber said you will see information as of 10/31. There are two pages for overall information. The 
overall percentage is 10% which is incredibly low, probably one of the lowest. She said we like to go with 
a 12-month rolling. October 2019 to October 2020 is 17% which is incredible. We also add the rehire 
rate to the bottom. Amber said she always thought that is such a remarkable thing that people 
sometimes end up back home. We have a 15% rehire rate. She said folks come back and that is a good 
thing. The national turnover average is about 26% with hospitals. It is a little bit lower during the 
pandemic. She said she breaks out the Clinic. The Clinic overall is 12% for a rolling 12 months. Ann said it 
seems like a lot of the nursing staff are switching areas where they are working. Amber said these are 
complete separations from the organization, it does not reflect changes of departments.  

 
III. OPEN POSITIONS: 
 

Amy said it has been a whirlwind the last couple of weeks. We have offered 21 jobs in the last 
week and have 12 people joining us next week. With that, we still have 22 open positions (19 FT, 1 
Temp, 2 PRN). Eight of those are nursing positions. Amy said we offered a couple of them but were 
turned down because employers are offering nurses more to stay. Barbara said it seemed like last 
month there weren’t as many open nursing positions. She asked if we are recruiting from in town or out 
of town. Amy said it is a mix of both. Barbara asked if we are experiencing staff fatigue to Covid? She 
asked what are we attributing the higher number of openings to? Irene said we are but a lot of these 

57/192



 

positions are new. We are hiring to supplement staff to get through this Covid surge and these are 
positions that will be paid for with Cares Act funds. Irene said there may have been some turnover in the 
Clinic but a lot of these are to help with staffing right now because we want to deal with the surge and 
prepare. Some of our staff have been out on quarantine or isolation. Barbara asked about the quality 
analyst position under nursing. She asked if that has to be a nursing position or someone with MAP and 
statistical abilities instead of nursing. Kari said she and Kara Jackson talked about this extensively and 
decided we really need someone with a clinical background. Ed asked about an EVS tech listed. Amber 
said that is our environmental services technician. We changed from “housekeeping” to “EVS techs”.  

 
IV. EMPLOYEE POLICIES: 
 

a. Termination and Appeal Policies – Ed asked Barbara to chair. She said she assumes 
everyone had a chance to read the information. At this point she said she would like to ask for a motion 
to approve. Suzan said the version in the packet is from March but there have been many developments 
since then. Suzan made the motion to approve for the sake of discussion, second by Irene. Motion 
carried. Ed said he is concerned from a different perspective than some might think. He thinks the work 
product has been excellent. The wording is good. The logic is good. It has a sound legal basis. We sent it 
on to the Board with a do-pass recommendation. We did recommend a hold until the entire package 
was put together. He said what we have been engaged in is like the Manhattan Project. Everyone was 
working on getting the bomb and once it was done there was a question on dropping it. He said it is the 
same thing with the Challenger and the same thing with D-Day. Ed said we have another thing to 
consider. Should we do it? Because we can doesn’t mean we should. Ed said it started out as an ad hoc 
committee. It grew into rewriting the entire employee relations packet of the hospital. Accordingly, it 
was said to run it through us. When he looks at the structure of this document, it is the structure he 
would see in a union operation or in a quasi-union environment. He gave some examples of concerns 
about “we/they” and a confrontational pre-determination opportunity meeting. Ed, Taylor and Barbara 
are representatives by law and charged with operating a county facility. Everyone else are employees. 
So how come this thing differentiates the we and the they and now differentiates the employees into 
classifications? Our investment is in being wise enough to get good employees and wise enough to bring 
them along and train them. When you have to fire someone, that is not a victory, you have lost an 
employee and the question is why. Compassionate care for every life we touch. That doesn’t say 
anything about patients, that’s all of us. Suzan said her understanding is that this policy was created 
because there is a feeling of some Board members and Jim Phillips that we need a mechanism to get 
from the termination to the hearing. So this grew out of that but she thinks it is way too excessive. She 
said if that’s what we want, there is probably an easier way to do it than this document. This makes us 
public employees and she has done research that shows we are not public employees. If you’re finally 
terminated from MHSC and you feel that you were terminated because your constitutional rights were 
violated, then this is what you do. It’s complicated and no one is going to be able to figure this out. It 
does look like we are trying to change the rules on them. Barbara asked for confirmation that what she 
heard said is what we are doing right now works. Suzan said it does work. Ed said it is intended to 
eliminate risk. Suzan said when this policy came out and then was put on hold, she realized this policy 
would affect a lot of other policies. So all of those changes have already been made and will be in place 
even if we don’t have this. There are things we have improved. She said the latest draft changed to try 
to mesh better with the Medical Executive Committee bylaws. Ed took the Chair role back. Barbara said 
from what she has heard this policy is not needed. Ed called for approval of the motion. The motion 
failed due to “opposed” votes. Ed said we have some explaining to do about that to the Board. He 
imagines there will be some discussion to explain why we feel that way. He said we do need to send it to 
the Board and thinks we need another motion to send to the Board with a do not pass recommendation. 

58/192



 

The motion to send the policy to the Board with a do not pass recommendation as discussed was made 
by Dr. Sowada, second by Suzan. Motion carried.    
  

b. Introductory Period – Suzan said there have been two changes made to the policy. One 
refers to definitions and changed from 90 days to a year. It is ready to come to this committee, it just 
hasn’t come to this committee. There was discussion of transfers. Amber said she thinks one year for 
new hires is a good plan. She thinks we need one in place and feels a probationary period is appropriate 
with a transfer and thinks 90 days for transfer is appropriate. Barbara said that should be written out 
clearly. Ed asked if during 90 days are they at-will. Suzan said yes. Ed and Barbara asked why would a 
person take a promotion? Barbara suggested writing it that if it didn’t work out in the promotion, the 
employee could return back to the previous position. Amber said it should be a 90-day performance 
assessment period. Suzan pulled up the latest draft. She read it aloud and there were comments it was 
not written well. Ed said he heard Amber say there should be specified performance evaluations during 
the time period. Suzan clarified she is okay with having new hires be for one year. Barbara said if an 
employee transfers within the one year probationary period, it should be extended to complete the 
year. If complete and then promoted, it should be a 90-day assessment. Suzan asked what if that 
position isn’t open anymore? Ed said he is hearing the policy needs some work. Suzan said she will send 
out the draft to everyone with proposed changes in yellow compared to the current policy. The group 
wants to look at it and bring it back to the next meeting for review. The motion to do that was made by 
Amber, second by Barbara. Motion carried. The policy is referred back to staff for more work and will be 
brought back to the next committee meeting.  
 

c. Release of Hold Recommendation - The motion to remove the recommendation of hold 
on that slate of policies that has been held up for the Term and Appeals Policy was made by Barbara, 
second by Suzan. Motion carried.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
V. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS: 
 

Ed said Barbara asked for an update on the workplace violence policy. Amber said we were 

going to create an ad hoc committee and that has not been done yet. We did have one scheduled for 

the political activity committee. That was canceled and not rescheduled yet.  

 

VI. NEXT MEETING DATE: 
 

There was a suggestion to move the December meeting one week earlier to Monday - 
December 14, 2020 at 3:00 PM. 
 
Ed thanked everyone for participating. The meeting adjourned at 4:05 PM. 

59/192



Human Resources Committee Meeting 

Monday, November 16, 2020 

3:00 PM – Zoom meeting  

AGENDA 

 

Old Business  

I. Approval of minutes 

II. Turnover Report - Amber 

III. Open Positions –Amy 

IV. Employee policies– All 

a. Termination and Appeal Policies 

b. Introductory Period 

New Business  

V. Committee member reports, other discussion(s) – as needed 

VI. Determination of Next Meeting Date (Auto-Scheduled for (12/21/20) 

 

 

60/192



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday - October 19, 2020 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Attending by Zoom: Barbara Sowada & Ed Tardoni 
Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Guests by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Kari Quickenden, Tami Love, Ann Clevenger 
 
Ed called the meeting to order.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
I. MINUTES APPROVED: 
 

The motion to approve the September 28, 2020, meeting minutes was made by Barbara, second 
by Irene. Motion carried.  

 
II. TURNOVER REPORT: 
 

Amber reviewed the report reflecting updates through the end of August. She said we had a 
couple of calculations that were incorrect so the corrected information was included in the Board packet 
for October. She wanted to make sure everyone had the updated information for review. The Clinic 
turnover data is based on 110 employees and those that have left within the last month. Amber said we 
are in a great place especially during Covid. She said the average turnover rate for hospitals in the nation 
is 26% and during Covid it has gone up closer to 30%. She said we were at 15% pre-Covid and have kept 
ourselves to 20% or less since June. Amber said we continue to include the breakdown information for 
reasons and we encourage people to come back if possible. Barbara asked if we are experiencing Covid-
fatigue. Amber said she thinks we are seeing a lot of that. She said we are seeing a lot of people asking 
about our employee assistance program. Amber said we have had so many people reach out with so 
many resources so we are sending that out to staff as much as possible. Irene shared information from a 
recent article she read about Covid-fatigue regarding people retiring earlier than planned. She said there 
are so many changes with Covid and so much risk as well as the financial implications of everything. 
Mentally, it is draining. Irene referenced the information shared during the Person-Centered Care 
Workshops and said we don’t know how long this will last and we need to give staff the resources they 
need to take care of themselves. We are trying to wrap our minds around the changes but want to make 
sure we take care of our staff. Barbara said she trusts leaders are taking care of themselves and each 
other. Irene said we are trying. Barbara shared the story of the shoemaker. Ed said from the perspective 
of a civilian, when you look at the numbers, he can understand the disregard for the prevention 
measures from the general public. He said staff are actually warriors on the front. There have been 
some victories and he hopes that encourages people moving forward. Irene said she hopes we can ride 
out this storm because it has been a challenge. Ed said in this day in age our work is not where the office 
is, it is what we do unless you have direct patient impact. Irene said technology has had an impact.  

Irene shared the overall updated turnover information on the screen. Amber said the information 
is as of September 30. Receptionists are in the higher category. She said the data reflects January 1 
through September 30, 2020. Amber said people usually leave between their 91st and 365th day. We 
have about 530 employees currently. The rolling twelve-month overall rate is 18%. She reminded the 
Committee the national average with healthcare hospitals is 26% but with Covid has been closer to 30%. 

61/192



 

Amber said the rehire rate is 15%. Amber said the Clinic through September is not that different than 
last month. Ed said we are at 53 separations and it looks like it has tapered off but projecting to be 
middle-range on losses for the year compared to other years. Amy said she thinks we will be under 
because we are lower with terminations than we were at this time last year.  

 
III. OPEN POSITIONS: 
 

Amy reviewed openings and the current status. She said we have 13 positions open currently: 
12 FT and 1 PRN. We have some extra help for the ultrasound positions because they are typically hard 
to fill. It has been open since June.  
 
IV. EMPLOYEE POLICIES: 
 

a. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy – Amber said there is a lot of information in the 
packet sent by Suzan regarding workplace violence. Ed said what he sees is that he doesn’t see a bunch 
of changes from what they considered last time. Suzan has provided information and resources for a 
plan. Ed said his feeling is what the Committee needs to decide is does that plan have to be submitted to 
the Board for approval. He knows the policy cites the plan so there should be a plan before we submit 
the policy to the Board for approval so he is asking how is hospital staff coming along on developing this 
plan. Suzan said she suggested the HR Committee create a working group and she would provide 
information but there hasn’t been a group started and the plan hasn’t been started. Ed said the way he 
sees it is staff develops the plan and the committee asks questions and refines. He doesn’t see using 
committee time to develop the plan. Barbara agreed and said an ad-hoc committee as Suzan 
recommended would be very valuable. Irene agreed. Ed said the policy is basically on-hold until such 
time hospital staff can assure the Committee they have a plan in place. Ed asked Suzan if there is 
anything in this workplace violence policy before them that she thinks needs consideration today. Suzan 
said no, there have been no changes. Ed said we are ready to go once the hospital staff is ready to go 
and says they are ready to talk about the plan. Ed said the 135 pages of information should not go to the 
board packet. Irene said Amber should form the ad-hoc committee of Senior Leaders, Amber, anyone 
else from HR, Suzan, and Noreen Hove. There was discussion of including Stevie Nosich and Des Padilla. 
Barbara suggested David Beltran. Kari suggested a front-line nurse from the ED or ICU. Amber suggested 
the Clinical Coordinators from those areas. Amber will set up the committee and schedule a Zoom 
meeting.  

b. Others needing discussion - Amber said the only other thing she had were a couple of e-
mails back and forth with Suzan that we are holding off on.  
 

Political Activity Policy - Ed said the Board sent the policy back to the Committee to look 
at employees running for public office or being elected to public office. Irene shared on-screen an e-mail 
from Marty Kelsey to Ed Tardoni and Irene. Ed said we have a lot of things to consider including what 
our budget will bear. He asked that when it is developed, bring it back to the Committee and he and 
Barbara will ask questions about it. Barbara clarified the policy is to be expanded to include information 
for running for office. Barbara said we need to decide what is the best thing for the organization. Irene 
shared her opinion and said she feels it is like a second job.  
 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

None 
 

62/192



 

 
 
VI. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS: 
 

None.  

 
VII. NEXT MEETING DATE: 
 
The next meeting is Monday, November 16, 2020. 
 
Ed thanked everyone for participating. The meeting adjourned at 3:40 PM. 

63/192



Requisition Job Title Job Category Schedule Shift Hours Department

2676 Med. LabTech Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable variable LABORATORY

2677 Med. LabTech Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable variable LABORATORY

2649 Med. Tech Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable variable LABORATORY

2674 Nurse 

Practitioner

Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable CLINIC

2646 Physical 

Therapist

Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Days 8:30-5pm PHYS, OCC & 

SPEECH THERAPY
2359 Reg. Resp. 

Therapist

Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable CARDIOPULMONAR

Y
2587 Ultrasound 

Tech.

Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Days M-F ECHOCARDIOGRAP

HY
2680 Ultrasound 

Tech.

Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Days M-F Ultrasound

2651 Admitting 

Specialist I

Non-Clinical PRN Variable ADMITTING

2652 Admitting 

Specialist I

Non-Clinical PRN Variable ADMITTING

2681 Collections  

Clerk/Cashier

Non-Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Days M-F CLINIC

2673 Collections 

Clerk

Non-Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Days M-F 8-4:30 PATIENT FINANCIAL 

SERVICES

2645 Dietary Aide Non-Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable NUTRITION 

SERVICES

 Filters 

All Active Facility;  All Active Department;  All Active ; Recruiters:All; Hiring Manager:All; JobStatus:Active - Posted; Optimize To Print:No; Display Job Summary:No; 

Custom Fields:No Custom Fields; Dates:6/1/

64/192



2687 Maintenance 

Machanic

Non-Clinical Regular Full 

Time

Variable Maintenance

2656 Chronic Care 

Manager

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Variable CLINIC

2659 Registered 

Nurse

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Variable MED/SURG

2658 Registered 

Nurse

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Variable MED/SURG

2683 Registered 

Nurse

Nursing Temporary Variable ICU

2660 Registered 

Nurse - Clinic

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Variable CLINIC

2682 Registered 

Nurse - Clinic

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Variable CLINIC

2675 Registered 

Nurse - Clinic

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Variable CLINIC

2650 Quality 

Analyst RN

Nursing Regular Full 

Time

Days QUALITY

 Filters 

All Active Facility;  All Active Department;  All Active ; Recruiters:All; Hiring Manager:All; JobStatus:Active - Posted; Optimize To Print:No; Display Job Summary:No; 

Custom Fields:No Custom Fields; Dates:6/1/

65/192



Top Position(s) /  Turnover 2020 %
Registered Nurse 8 7%
Clinic Collections Clerk/Recp. 6 40%
EVS TECH 5 20%

Top Department(s) / Turnover 2020 %
Clinic 9 16%
EVS 7 13%
Nutrition Services 6 11%
Health Information Management 5 9%

Top Reasons / Turnover 2020 %
Discharged 18 33%
Resigned 11 20%
Other Employment 9 16%
Moving Out of Area/Relocation 5 9%
Retired 4 7%

Length of Service 2020 %
Less than 90 days 11 20%
91 - 365 days 14 25%
1-2 Yrs. 11 20%
3-5 Yrs. 9 16%
6-10 Yrs. 4
11-20 Yrs. 1
21-41Yrs. 5 9%
Total 55

Corrective Action % Discharged
Counseling
Verbal Warning
Written Warning 4% 100%
Final Written Warning 14% 100%
Administrative Leave

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
2020 Overall  Turnover Data (As of 10/31/2020)

0%

5%

10%

15%

0
5

10
15

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%

Cl
in

ic

EV
S

N
ut

rit
io

n
Se

rv
ic

es

He
al

th
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
M

an
ag

em
en

t

0

20

Registered Nurse

Clinic Collections
Clerk/Recp.

EVS TECH

66/192



Total 
Employees 536

536

Separations
New 

Employees 536
January 4 4 533

February 9 6 530
March 9 8 529

April 1 4 532
May 7 1 526
June 7 3 522
July 3 8 527

August 9 8 526
September 4 8 530

October 2 10 538
November
December

Total 55 60 10%

Overall Turnover
2009 96

Separations 2010 98
Involuntary 18 2011 79

Voluntary 37 2012 104
Total 55 2013 113

2014 88
2015 97
2016 86

Classifications 2017 116
RN 7 2018 96

Classified 48 2019 93
Total 55 2020 55

Rolling 12 Separations %
Jan 19 - Jan 20 109 20%
Feb 19 - Feb 20 107 20%
March 19 - March 20 107 20%
April 19 - April 20 103 19%
May 19 - May 20 105 20%
June 19 - June 20 105 20%
July 19 - July 20 94 18%
Aug 19 - Aug 20 92 17%
Sept 19 - Sept 20 93 18%
Oct 19 - Oct 20 94 17%

Rehire Rate Rehires %
July 19 - July 20 14 15%
Aug 19 - Aug 20 17 18%
Sept 19 - Sept 20 16 17%
Oct 19 - Oct 20 13 15%

2020 Separations - Hospital Wide

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

0

50

100

150

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Overall Turnover 2009 - 2020

Series1

67/192



Top  Position(s) /  Turnover 2020 %
Clinic Collections Clerk/Recep 6 40%
Registered Nurse 1 5%

Top Reason(s) / Turnover 2020 %
Discharged 5 56%
Resignation 2 22%

Length of Service 2020 %
Less than 90 days 3 33%
91 - 365 days 1 11%
1-2 Yrs. 2 22%
3-5 Yrs. 3 33%
6-10 Yrs.
11-20 Yrs.
21-30 Yrs.
Total 9

Counseling
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written Warning 1% 100%
Disciplinary Suspension

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY - CLINIC DATA
2020 Clinic Turnover Data (as of 10/31/2020)

Corrective Action

0%

500%

Less
than 90

days

91 -
365
days

1-2 Yrs. 3-5 Yrs. 6-10
Yrs.

11-20
Yrs.

21-30
Yrs.

0%

100%

Discharged Resignation

0%

1%

1%

2%

Counseling Verbal
Warning

Written
Warning

Final Written
Warning

Disciplinary
Suspension

Clinic Collections
Clerk/Recep

Registered Nurse

68/192



2020 Separations - Clinic

Separations
New 

Employees
Total 

Employees 110
January 0 0 110

February 1 1 110
March 2 2 110

April 1 0 109
May 1 0 108
June 0 0 108
July 1 1 108

August 3 3 108
September 0 1 109

October 0 4 113
November
December

Total

Separations Overall Turnover
Involuntary 5 2014 20 26%

Voluntary 4 2015 11 18%
Total 9 2016 16 14%

2017 26 23%
2018 13 12%

Classifications 2019 6 5%
RN 1 2020 9 8%

Classified 8
Total 9

Rolling 12 Months 
Jan 19 - Jan 20 7 6%
Feb 19 - Feb 20 8 7%
March 19- March 20 10 9%
April 19 - April 20 6 6%
May 19 - May 20 10 9%
June 19 - June 20 9 8%
July 19 - July 20 10 9%
Aug 19- - Aug 20 13 12%
Sept 19 - Sept 20 8 7%
Oct 19 - Oct 20 13 12%

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%

Jan 19 -
Jan 20

Feb 19 -
Feb 20

March 19-
March 20

April 19 -
April 20

May 19 -
May 20

June 19 -
June 20

July 19 -
July 20

Aug 19- -
Aug 20

Rolling 12 months

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

0
5

10
15
20
25
30

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Overall Turnover

69/192



                                                                                                    Policy Stat #: 
 

Termination and Appeal 
General: 
This Termination and Appeal policy and procedure applies to all employees of Memorial 
Hospital excepting employed physicians and other providers. Only the Hospital’s Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) has the authority to terminate the employment of a Hospital employee 
and must provide a written directive to the Human Resources Office prior to any termination 
proceeding. 
 
This Termination and Appeal policy and procedure does not apply to reduction-in-force (layoffs) 
due to a lack of funds, lack of work or other reasons. 
 
From the time an employee is notified that he/she is being terminated, until all internal appeal 
avenues have been exhausted, the employee is entitled to continuing regular pay. At the 
discretion of the Hospital, the employee may be suspended with pay during this period of time, 
or may continue working. Should an employee resign, however, pay will cease at that time. 
 
Employees may not utilize the Hospital’s Conflict Resolution policy to address termination 
decisions. 
 
Definitions: 
At-Will Employee 
An employee who has worked for the Hospital for less than one year and is in the “Introductory 
Period”, per Hospital policy. It is understood that no consideration has been furnished to the 
Hospital for the employment of the employee other than the employee’s services. Any 
employee has the right to terminate his/her employment with the Hospital and the Hospital has 
the same right. 
 
Part Time Employee 
An employee who occupies a position where the incumbent is scheduled to normally work less 
than thirty (30) hours in a work week. 
 
Full Time Employee 
An employee who occupies a position where the incumbent is scheduled to normally work 
thirty (30) hours a week or more. 
 
Termination: 
The involuntary termination of an employee by the Hospital’s CEO. 
 
Termination of “At-Will” Part Time Employees 
Notice of termination shall be provided by the Director of Human Resources, or designee, upon 
a written directive from the CEO, by registered or certified mail to the last known address of 

70/192



such employee. Proof of such written notice, together with the proof of mailing, shall be kept 
and retained in the records of the Hospital. Although one or more steps in the Hospital’s 
Corrective Action Policy may be applied, the Hospital will not necessarily give the employee 
formal reasons for the termination. 
 
Should the employee believe that the termination decision was based on the exercise of his or 
her constitutional rights, and/or that he or she has a reasonable expectation of continued 
employment, and/or that the action to terminate his or her employment would stigmatize him 
or her, the employee may appeal the decision to the CEO in writing within ten (10) calendar 
days of notification of termination. The CEO will review the written appeal and may (or may 
not) determine to interview the employee and/or discuss the matter with supervisory or other 
personnel. The CEO shall inform the employee of his or her decision in writing. The CEO’s 
decision in this matter is final. 
 
Termination of Non “At-Will” Part Time Employees 
Notice of termination shall be provided by the Director of Human Resources, or designee, upon 
a written directive from the CEO, by registered or certified mail to the last known address of 
such employee. Proof of such written notice, together with the proof of mailing, shall be kept 
and retained in the records of the Hospital. The employee shall be provided reasons for the 
termination by the Hospital. 
 
Should the employee decide to appeal the termination decision, the employee may appeal the 
decision to the CEO in writing within ten (10) calendar days of notification of termination. The 
CEO will review the written appeal and may (or may not) determine to interview the employee 
and/or discuss the matter with supervisory or other personnel. The CEO shall inform the 
employee of his or her decision in writing. The CEO’s decision in this matter is final. 
 
Termination of “At-Will” Full Time Employees 
The Director of Human Resources, or designee, having first received a written directive from 
the CEO, shall terminate the employment of a full time employee who is in the “Introductory 
Period” upon notification in writing of such decision by registered or certified mail to the last 
known address of such employee. Proof of such written notice together with the proof of 
mailing, shall be kept and retained in the records of the Hospital. Reasons for the termination 
decision shall not be given, other than outlined below. 
 
 Should the employee believe that the decision to terminate his or her employment was based 
on the exercise of his or her constitutional rights, and/or that he or she has a reasonable 
expectation of continued employment and/or that the action to terminate his or her 
employment would stigmatize him or her, the following procedure will take place: 
 

1. The employee may request a hearing before an Administrative Hearing Officer by 
requesting same in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the termination 
notice. The request shall be made to the CEO. 

71/192



 
2. The CEO shall immediately notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of the request and 

shall forward the written request for a hearing to him or her. The Board of Trustees’ 
attorney shall then arrange for an Administrative Hearing Officer to conduct a pre-
hearing conference as soon as practical. 
 

3. At the request of the Administrative Hearing Officer, the CEO shall submit to the 
Administrative Hearing Officer his or her reasons for termination. At the same time, the 
Administrative Hearing Officer shall request the employee to submit to the 
Administrative Hearing Officer substantial evidence that the termination decision was 
based upon an exercise of his or her constitutional rights and/or that he or she has a 
reasonable expectation of continued employment, and/or how the action of 
termination would stigmatize him or her. 
 

4. After reviewing the reasons for the termination and any evidence submitted by the 
employee, the Administrative Hearing Officer shall determine that: 
 
a. Sufficient evidence has been presented by the employee to warrant a formal hearing 

by the Administrative Hearing Officer. In such case, a hearing will be scheduled and, 
at the conclusion of the hearing, the Administrative Hearing Officer will submit a 
written copy of his or her findings, conclusions, and recommendations to the Board 
of Trustees for a final decision. 

OR 
 
b. Insufficient evidence has been presented by the employee to warrant a formal 

hearing by the Administrative Hearing Officer. In such a case, the Administrative 
Hearing Officer will inform both the CEO and the employee of his or her findings. 
The CEO shall discuss these findings with the Board of Trustees’ attorney and will 
subsequently make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees for a final decision. 

 
5. If the Administrative Hearing Officer determines that a formal hearing shall be held, he 

or she will immediately provide the employee the CEO’s reasons for termination and will 
immediately provide the CEO with any evidence submitted by the employee. 
OR 
 
If the Administrative Hearing Officer determines that a formal hearing is not warranted, 
upon request, he or she will provide the employee the CEO’s reasons for termination. 

 
6. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Hospital to ensure that these due process 

proceedings are conducted in a timely manner. The Administrative Hearing Officer shall 
make a determination as to whether or not a formal hearing is warranted within thirty 
(30) calendar days from receipt of notice by the Board of Trustees’ attorney. Should the 
Administrative Hearing Officer determine that a formal hearing be conducted, he or she 
shall notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of same. The Board of Trustees’ attorney 

72/192



shall then arrange for a pre-hearing conference as soon as practical. The formal hearing 
shall be held within thirty (30) calendar days following the pre-hearing conference. The 
Hospital shall pay for all administrative costs associated with the hearing including fees 
charged by the Hearing Officer and transcription services. The parties shall pay their 
own legal fees, if any. The Hospital’s Rules of Practice Governing Hearings shall be 
followed. Should the Administrative Hearing Officer determine that a formal hearing is 
not warranted, a recommendation regarding the disposition of the case shall be made 
to the Board of Trustees within thirty (30) calendar days of the Administrative Hearing 
Officer’s determination. 

 
 
Termination of Non “At-Will” Full Time Employees 
The Director of Human Resources, or designee, having first received a written directive from 
the CEO, shall terminate the employment of a full time employee who is not in the 
“Introductory Period”, upon notification in writing of such decision by registered or certified 
mail to the last known address of such employee. Proof of such written notice together with 
the proof of mailing, shall be kept and retained in the records of the Hospital.  
 
Prior to making the decision to terminate a full time employee in this category, and prior to 
notifying the employee of the decision, the CEO shall conduct an informal Pre-Determination 
Opportunity Meeting. The CEO shall notify the employee of the meeting by any appropriate 
means, giving the employee at least a week’s notice. The employee may waive his or her right 
to participate in the meeting. At the meeting, the Hospital’s Director of Human Resources, or 
designee, shall be in attendance. The employee’s supervisor shall also be in attendance, unless 
the employee plans to attend the meeting and objects to same. The employee is allowed to 
have a limited number of other individuals attend this meeting and to speak in support of the 
employee. 
 
At the Pre-Determination Opportunity Meeting, the CEO shall inform the employee that he or 
she is considering terminating the employee’s employment at the Hospital. The CEO’s reasons 
for considering the possible termination shall be shared with the employee. The employee shall 
be informed that this is an opportunity for the employee to share with the CEO information 
regarding his or her employment that the CEO can take into consideration prior to making a 
decision whether or not to terminate the employee. 
 
Subsequent to the Pre-Determination Opportunity Meeting, the CEO shall make a decision. 
Should the CEO make the decision to terminate the employee, the employee shall be notified 
as set forth above. If the employee decides to appeal the termination decision, the following 
procedure will take place. 
 

1. The employee may request a formal hearing before an Administrative Hearing 
Officer by requesting same in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the 
termination notice provided by the Hospital’s Human Resources Office. The request 
shall be made to the CEO. 

73/192



 
2. The CEO shall immediately notify the Board of Trustees’ attorney of the request and 

shall forward the written request for a hearing to him or her. The Board of Trustees’ 
attorney shall then arrange for an Administrative Hearing Officer to conduct a pre-
hearing conference as soon as practical. 

 
3. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the Hospital to ensure that these due 

process proceedings are conducted in a timely manner. The hearing shall be held 
within thirty (30) calendar days following the pre-hearing conference. 

 
4. The Hospital shall pay all administrative costs associated with the hearing including 

fees charged by the Hearing Officer and transcription services. The parties shall pay 
their own legal fees, if any. 

 
5. The Hospital’s Rules of Practice Governing Hearings shall be followed. 
 

 
 

74/192



Recommended Changes to Two Existing HR Policies 
March, 2020 

 
These proposed changes to two existing HR policies are being recommended in connection with 
the recommendation to add a new policy, Termination and Appeal. 
 
The Hospital’s CEO, Irene Richardson, the Board’s attorney, Jim Phillips, and Board Member 
Marty Kelsey all agree that the new policy should be adopted and that the two existing policies 
listed below should be modified as presented. 
 
Employee Corrective Action 
I.C.6 It is suggested that the existing sentence should remain “as is”, but a second sentence 
should be added that would read: “Termination proceedings shall be handled in accordance 
with the Hospital’s Termination and Appeal policy”. 
 
 
Introductory Period 
The Hospital’s CEO, Irene Richardson, would like to see the current 90 day Introductory Period, 
with a possible 90 day extension, replaced with a one year Introductory Period, with no 
extension. 
 
Purpose 
Replace “90 day” with “one year.” 
 
I.A. It is recommended that the second sentence be removed. 
 
1.B. It is recommended that the first sentence be re-worded to read as follows: “Introductory 
period employees are at-will employees, as defined in the Hospital’s Termination and Appeal 
policy”. Further, it is recommended that all the remaining language in this section (1.B) be 
removed. 
 
1.C  It is recommended that the word “your” be removed. 
 
II. It is recommended, in the introductory sentence, that “90 day” be replaced with “one year.” 
 
II.B. Same as above…replace “90 day” with “one year”. 
 
 
 
 
 

75/192



76/192



77/192



78/192



79/192



80/192



81/192



82/192



83/192



84/192



85/192



86/192



87/192



88/192



89/192



90/192



91/192



92/192



93/192



94/192



95/192



96/192



97/192



98/192



99/192



100/192



101/192



102/192



103/192



104/192



105/192



106/192



107/192



108/192



109/192



110/192



111/192



112/192



113/192



114/192



115/192



116/192



117/192



118/192



119/192



120/192



121/192



122/192



123/192



124/192



125/192



126/192



127/192



128/192



129/192



130/192



131/192



132/192



133/192



134/192



135/192



136/192



137/192



138/192



139/192



140/192



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…November Buildings and Grounds Meeting 
Date:  November 30, 2020 
 
Regarding the Central Plant project. This project was scheduled to be completed in June. It is 
now estimated the project is approximately 95% completed. Approximately $460,000 is being 
withheld at this time. Jake mentioned that the Hospital may have to keep these funds and 
retain another contractor to do the work. I cautioned that legal counsel needs to be involved if 
we go down that road. I asked that the bonding company be notified to put more pressure on 
the contractor to finish the job. The six month delay is unacceptable. 
 
Regarding the HVAC project, one small pay application has been submitted. A “very heavy 
billing” is expected by December 15th. Discussion occured about the completion of work 
deadline as it pertains to reimbursement under the rules. Ms. Love reported on updated 
guidance. Jake believes that the $2.8 million of the project will be completed by December 30 
with the remaining $1.4 million to be completed by June 30th. Regarding the medical imaging 
area, it was reported that everything got moved out. Will is planning to work with Groathouse 
on this matter. Several issues to need to be addressed. 
 
Regarding the laboratory project, there was considerable discussion about whether or not 
CARES funds can actually be used for this project. Some sentiment was expressed that we are 
not sure. I asked Irene to get with her staff to try to get the best answer as possible. We do not 
want to be “on the hook” for paying for this project is CARES funds are not available. (UPDATE: 
See Irene’s subsequent e-mail, dated November 22nd, on this subject.) Design work, however, is 
continuing. 
 
Regarding the Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room…Jake and Will are planning to get together after 
the first of the year to design a new space for this. 
 
Regarding the Pharmacy Compounding Room, we are still waiting on doors. Regarding the 
outside drainage by the Emergency Department, the work has been completed. 
 
Discussion ensued about some renovation requested by Dr. Sulentich. Cost might be in the area 
of $120,000. Once details are ironed out, this could come to the Board after the first of the 
year. Staff recommends the Hospital pay half the cost. 
 
Discussion ensued about a retaining wall issue at the Waldner House. This required more study 
and might come before the Board this coming spring. 
 
 

141/192



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

November 17, 2020 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on November 17, 2020, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

   Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

 
    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the minutes from the October 20, 2020 meeting, Ms. 

Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan presented the maintenance metrics.  He said they have been remarkably consistent and 

there is nothing out of the ordinary.  Overtime is expected to increase with the arrival of the winter 

months.   

 
 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

 

Mr. Blevins said we have received the preliminary punch list and they are ramping up for closure.  

We are holding the balance of the retention plus the most recent pay application for a total of about 

$460,000.  Mr. Blevins will add a schedule of values to the unfinished punch list and one option 

is to withhold these funds and complete ourselves.  Mr. Kelsey asked how much of the punch list 

is complete and Mr. Blevins responded less than 20-30% is complete at this time.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked if we have considered his request to contact the bonding company of the contractor.  Mr. 

Blevins and Ms. Richardson have not moved forward with contacting the bonding company at this 

time. Mr. Kelsey strongly advised we call the bonding company as this is unacceptable.  Mr. 

Blevins said he would assist the hospital in this process.  Mr. Kelsey would like a report prior to 

the Board meeting regarding our conversation with the bonding company and asked we talk to our 

legal counsel. 

 

  

 

142/192



 

 

Minutes of the November 17, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

SLIB/CARES Act Projects 

 

HVAC & UVC – Mr. Blevins provided an update and said Groathouse has mobilized and is ready 

to set the steel on the roof. We have received their first pay application.  Steel will be delivered 

next week and the air handler will be shipped the beginning of December. The Medical Imaging 

staff has been fully relocated for the project.  Infection control barriers are going up this week. We 

do need to make a final decision on the scope of the Medical Imaging remodel.  We would like to 

talk to Groathouse about continuing with that project. He gave Groathouse a courtesy heads up of 

the possibility of the new project and that the ceiling and lighting scope may change.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked about the SLIB due dates.  Ms.  Love explained we have received new guidance from SLIB.  

Grant reimbursement requests must be received by SLIB by December 15.  If there is still work 

that will be done between December 15 – 30, then an estimate of services can be requested by 

December 15 and we will have until January 30, 2021 to submit actual invoices and documentation 

for any work completed by December 30.  Mr. Blevins said the pay application from Groathouse 

was less than $200,000 and he will work with them to make sure the next pay application includes 

as much of the completed project as possible. Mr. Kelsey asked for Mr. Blevins’ sense of how 

much of the project will be completed by December 30.  Mr. Blevins feels the project is on 

schedule for the initial timeline of $2.8 million by the end of the year with the remaining $1.4 

million to be completed by June 30.  He added he is very pleased with the choice of Groathouse 

for the CMAR. 

 

Medical Imaging – Mr. Johnston reported they relocated all of the affected staff and patient areas.  

The barriers are up with new egress routes and ISLM completed.  They are working on pulling the 

rooms negative.  Mr. Kelsey asked if Groathouse had concerns about the Medical Imaging remodel 

project.  Groathouse has been made aware of the project and we will be working with them on 

change orders regarding ceilings, lighting and demolition.  We understand the immediate need to 

get the designs completed as soon as possible.  Mr. Wheatley sent the conceptual drawings to the 

group today and has been working with a vendor on design of an interventional radiology suite. 

We are meeting next week to agree on a design so we can work with Groathouse on the 

design/build as we go if they are interested in the project. 

 

 

Laboratory – Mr. Wheatley reported they are proceeding with design, both structural and civil.  

The goal is to have design documents complete by Thanksgiving, construction documents by mid-

December to Groathouse for pricing.  We would hopefully begin at the beginning of the year.  Mr. 

Kelsey asked for more information on the deadlines for this project.  Ms. Richardson and Ms. Love 

discussed the CARES Act funds and the use for these projects.  Ms. Richardson recommended we 

do not move forward with the Lab at this time.  Mr. Kelsey concurred without more information 

on the use of the funds.  Ms. Love recommended we continue with the design phase up until we 

have pricing and have to decide.  We hope to have more information from HHS in January.  Mr. 

Wheatley agreed we should move on because of the tight timeline if it is a CARES Act project.  

He also said the review from the State may take longer as it is healthcare related.  Mr. Kelsey asked 

we report back before the Board meeting on a decision.  He understands our frustration of working 

in an unknown environment and agrees we don’t want to give any money back. 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room – Mr. Horan and Mr. Blevins have met with Tim Mickle, our 

Director of Pharmacy, and the next step will be to devise a renovated space for the hospital to 

review at the beginning of the year. We are still getting information on the industrial hygienist. 

143/192



 

 

Minutes of the November 17, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 

Pharmacy Compounding Room – Mr. Johnston said the doors have been ordered but we are still 

waiting on notice of shipment.  He is hoping we will have them by the beginning of the year.   

 

Emergency Room Outside Drainage – Mr. Johnston said this project is complete.  We will know 

if the drainage issues are fixed when we start having freeze/thaw weather. 

 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

Bulk Oxygen Renovation and Grading – Mr. Horan said there is nothing new to add at this point. 

Replacement Roofing for Power House – Mr. Horan said this is still on for the spring. 

OB Bathtubs to Showers – Mr. Horan said this is still on hold. 

 

 

New Business 

 

Dr. Sulentich Office – Ms. Love explained the history of this project. We would like to 

recommend the hospital pays for half of the renovation cost.  Dr. Sowada asked what our portion 

of the project would cost.  Ms. Love said the architectural estimate is right around $120,000 so we 

would pay for $60,000.  Mr. Kelsey asked about his current contract.  Ms. Richardson said his 

contract expired in February and we have been delayed due to the pandemic.  She said he does do 

a lot of pathology services in our hospital and some surgeries. He has continued to pay us monthly 

rent.  Mr. Kelsey asked if Ms. Richardson would bring a contract to the Board so we can get some 

closure.   

 

Foundation Waldner House Wall – Ms. Love shared some pictures of the wall between the 

Waldner House and the neighbor.  Mr. Horan had a surveyor do a boundary line validation and it 

turns out most of the wall is on the neighbor’s property.  He said we will approach the neighbor 

with this information and let him know we are willing to work with him for our mutual interest.  

The engineer estimate for a new wall and flat work is around $100,000.  Mr. Kelsey asked if this 

could probably be done next summer.  Mr. Horan agreed and would keep the committee updated.  

 

The next meeting will be held December 15 at 3:30 p.m.   

 

Mr. Kelsey added he would like Ms. Richardson to get on the agenda for the executive session of 

the next Board meeting to discuss potential legal issues with the Central Plant contractor. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:37 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

144/192



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BUILDING & GROUNDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 

Tuesday ~ November 17, 2020  3:30 p.m.  Zoom teleconference   

  

Voting Board Committee Members: Marty Kelsey, Chairman Dr. Barbara Sowada 

Voting Staff Committee Members: Irene Richardson, Tami Love, Jim Horan 

Non-voting Members: Gerry Johnston, Stevie Nosich 

Guests:  Jake Blevins – ST&B, Will Wheatley – PlanOne, Jeff Smith - County Commissioner Liaison 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

2. Approve Agenda      Marty Kelsey 

3. Approve Minutes – October 20, 2020    Marty Kelsey 

4. Maintenance Metrics      Jim Horan 

a. Work orders  

b. Amount of overtime for month 

c. Budget variance 

5. Old Business       Jim Horan 

a. Project Review 

i. Central Plant expansion 

ii. SLIB/CARES Act Projects  

1. HVAC/UVG 

2. Laboratory 

iii. Pharmacy Chemo Mixing room 

iv. Pharmacy Compounding room 

v. Emergency Room outside drainage 

vi. Medical Imaging remodel 

b. Tabled projects 

i. Bulk Oxygen renovation and grading 

ii. Replacement roofing for power house  

iii. OB Bathtubs to Showers 

6. New Business       Jim Horan 

a. Dr. Sulentich office renovation       

b. Foundation Waldner House retaining wall 

1/7145/192



  

7. Next meeting schedule      Marty Kelsey 

a. December 15, 2020 Classroom 1 or Zoom; 3:30P – 4:30P 

8. Adjournment       Marty Kelsey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2/7146/192



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

October 20, 2020 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on October 20, 2020, at 

3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

   Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director 

 
    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Ms. Richardson made a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Horan seconded; motion passed. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the minutes from the September 15, 2020 meeting, Ms. 

Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan presented the maintenance metrics.  All metrics have been standard and steady.  

Overtime is expected to increase with the arrival of the winter months.  The Facilities department 

is slightly over budget each month but we continue to submit requests for reimbursement from our 

County Maintenance fund.  

 
 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

 

Mr. Blevins said the preliminary punch list was issued to the Contractor.  Subcontractors are onsite 

this week to work through the punch list.  He said he would also be onsite this week and will check 

in with BHI.  His Site Observation Specialist will also be onsite to review the project.  He said 

BHI is pushing the subs to be done by the end of the month. Harris still needs to run through the 

functional testing of the controls.  Dr. Sowada asked why the subcontractors were so slow.  Mr. 

Blevins said they struggled to find pipefitters in the market once we asked them to ramp up.  She 

asked if our experience with these subcontractors will be considered with future projects.  Mr. 

Blevins said there have been lessons learned and we will be including liquidated damages in future 

contracts.  Mr. Kelsey thanked Mr. Blevins for his report.  

 

 

 

 

3/7147/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 20, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

SLIB/CARES Act Projects 

 

HVAC & UVC – Mr. Blevins provided an update. The general contractor, Groathouse, will be 

onsite this week to discuss mobilization and to meet with staff regarding expectations.  He said 

submittals are being reviewed as they come in.  We did receive a response from the State for the 

permitting and have a few minor issues to respond back.  The asbestos report came back and we 

will need abatement on the roof area.  The City of Rock Springs should release the electrical permit 

by the end of this week.  Mr. Blevins said we are expecting the GMP from Groathouse soon.  Mr. 

Kelsey asked about items we can purchase directly.  Mr. Blevins responded the air handler unit 

was the only item to be direct purchased and the hospital has already made that purchase.  The 

architect and engineer fees will also be direct purchases of the owner.  Mr. Horan asked if about 

considering remodeling a portion of Medical Imaging as these areas will be relocated for this 

project.  Dr. Sowada asked for a recommendation to the Committee and Ms. Richardson 

commented we would highly recommend moving forward with a phased remodel of the areas.  She 

said we have preliminary cost figures and have the funds available.  Mr. Kelsey agreed it was a 

perfect time to look at this project and would like to see a recommendation to the Board.  Mr. 

Blevins said he will need to talk to Plan One Architects to review scope overlay with the current 

project.  He also gave Groathouse a courtesy heads up of the possibility of the new project and that 

the ceiling scope may change.  

 

MOB Entrance – Mr. Kelsey said the decision was made to put this project on hold.  Ms. 

Richardson said we may revisit if SLIB changes their rules and timelines.  

 

Laboratory – Mr. Blevins said the architect schematic design documents should be ready by the 

end of this week.  He is working with Will Wheatley of Plan One to look at options for the HVAC 

unit servicing this area.  

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room – Mr. Horan and Mr. Blevins met with staff and it was agreed to 

wait until the new year to start this project.  Mr. Kelsey asked if it was determined there is no 

imminent danger to justify bringing in an industrial hygienist at this time.  Mr. Blevins there has 

not been an analysis done at this time.  Ms. Richardson and Mr. Blevins agreed we would circle 

back around and look at our contacts to make this happen.  

 

Pharmacy Compounding Room – Mr. Johnston said the doors have been ordered.  Once we are 

notified of shipping, we will start.  He estimates a start date in about two weeks.  

 

Grounds Lean-To – Mr. Horan said we are waiting on the chain link fence and gate to be installed.  

We should be able to close this project out by the next meeting. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked about the status of the potential change order on the Central Plant for fencing.  

Mr. Blevins said he didn’t want to move forward with that under the current BHI contract.  It was 

decided to work with Mr. Wheatley on a design and we would bid it out as a separate project. 

 

Emergency Room Outside Drainage – Mr. Johnston said they will start either this Thursday or 

next week.  It will take about four days to complete and they will also be working on some concrete 

replacement at 3000 College Hill. 

 

 

4/7148/192



 

 

Minutes of the October 20, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Tabled Projects   

 

Bulk Oxygen Renovation and Grading – Mr. Horan said there is nothing new to add at this point. 

Replacement Roofing for Power House – Mr. Horan said this is still on for the spring. 

OB Bathtubs to Showers – Mr. Horan said this is still on hold. 

 

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if our snow removal equipment is ready to go.  Mr. Horan said yes and they are 

pleased to have the new Lean-To to store the equipment.  He also mentioned he did include a new 

truck in the capital budget for this year. 

 

Ms. Richardson asked about the need to have the SLIB grant capital requests brought to this 

Committee for approval. Mr. Kelsey and Dr. Sowada agreed they would not need to come to 

Building & Grounds as they will be ratified at the Board meeting. 

 

Mr. Kelsey thanked Mr. Blevins and the staff for all the work put into these projects.  He said he 

would like to come up for a tour of the projects. 

 

Mr. Horan said since the new chiller plant up and running, we have seen savings of $8,000 per 

month.  We will also be receiving an incentive of $90,000 from Rocky Mountain Power once the 

project is complete.  He will bring the graphs showing the tracking to the next meeting. We are 

actually using less electricity now then prior to building our MOB.   

 

The next meeting will be held November 17 at 3:30 p.m. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to adjourn.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

5/7149/192



B & G 

Active W/O Active W/O > 30 Days Monthly open W/O 

Reported 10/16 221 198 23

Reported 11/2018 224 201 23

Reported 12/18 218 197 21

Reported 01/19 201 188 13

Reported 02/2019 208 182 37

Reported 03/2019 156 123 33

Reported 4/2019 178 126 52

Reported 5/2019 162 134 28

Reported 6/2019 165 88 77

Reported 7/2019 168 40 128

Reported 8/2019 166 28 138

Reported 9/2019 177 60 117

Reported 10/2019 not reported not reported not reported

Reported 11/2019 245 111 134

Reported 12/2019 213 115 98

Reported 1/2020 142 126 16

Reported 2/2020 152 114 38

Reported 3/2020 168 125 43

Reported 4/2020 108 97 11

Reported 5/2020 168 105 63

Reported 6/2020 174 112 62

Reported 7/2020 177 131 46

Reported 8/2020 95 35 60

Reported 9/2020 107 57 50

Reported 10/2020 105 45 60

Reported 11/2020 110 59 51

6/7150/192



TMS ACCESS

B&G graph

Active =?

W/O

Query

Facilities

Web

Active = < 30 days

less active = > 30 days

7/7151/192



Reports for Board Compliance Committee   10-22-2020 

1.       behavioral health patients 

2. There were 2 HIPPA violations reportable for the month of October. Both cases the employees 

were coached and will be monitored. 

3. The Grievance Committee resolved 6 cases in October. Each of the cases were reviewed and 

resolved in a timely manner.  

 

 

4.  Ongoing Audits by April Prado 

a. Denial Management 

b. Peer review OPPE, FPPE 

152/192



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

November 6, 2020 

Agenda 

Old Business 

1. Review and approve the following items:  

a. BOT Bylaws: Chapter VII, Section 1 and 2  

b. Policy regarding Guidelines for Physician Contracts  

c. Policy regarding Guidelines for Non-Physician Contracts 

New Business 

1. Continue reviewing and revising BOT Bylaws 

Executive Session, as needed 

 

 

 

153/192



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

November 6, 2020 

Zoom Meeting 

 

Voting Members Present: Richard Mathey, Irene Richardson, and Barbara Sowada 

Non-voting Members Present: Suzan Campbell and Marianne Sanders 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

Richard Mathey called meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 

 

Discussion 

Agenda was approved with switching time of Bylaw discussion with policies discussion. 

 

Minutes of last month’s meeting had previously been approved. 

 

Old Business 

1. Policy regarding Guidelines Negotiating for Physician Contracts was reviewed. The purpose of this 

Board policy is to authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to recruit physicians and negotiate their 

contracts within the guidelines set forth in the policy. After minor changes made to retirement 

benefits section, it was determined that the policy is ready for the Board’s first reading at the 

December Board meeting.  

a. After an email discussion on Nov 9th the following sentence was added. “These guidelines 

are based on federal physician recruitment and compensation statutes and 

regulations.” 

2. Policy regarding Guidelines for Negotiating Non-Physician Provider Contracts was reviewed. The 

purpose of this Board policy is to authorize the CEO to recruit non-physician providers and negotiate 

their contracts within the guidelines set forth in the policy. After minor changes made to retirement 

benefits section, it was determined that the policy is ready for the Board’s first reading at the 

December Board meeting. 

a. After an email discussion on Nov 9th, it was determined that the sentence regarding federal 

physician recruitment statues do not apply. 

3. Revision of Bylaws was continued. Chapter 1: Definitions was reviewed and tentatively approved. 

Chapter VII-Medical Staff was reviewed and tentatively approved.  

New Business 

 None 

Executive Session re Peer-to-peer Relationships 

1. Actions taken: identified need for a robust orientation program  

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:30 pm. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

154/192



155/192



156/192



 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
                                         

                                         
 

Submitted To: 

Stacey Nutt, Systems Administrator 

Direct 307-352-8288 

snutt@sweetwatermemorial.com 

1200 College Drive, Rock Springs, WY 82901 

 

P.O. Box 6595 

South Bend, IN 46660 

Tel: (574) 258-1044 

Fax: (574) 258-1045 

 

Submitted By: 

Tony W. Matt 

Harmony Healthcare IT 

M 763-232-7147 

TMatt@HarmonyHIT.com 

 

 

 

Long-term, HIPAA-compliant storage of 
electronic Protected Health Information (ePHI) 

157/192



  Page 2 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 
Master HealthData Archiver® License and Service Agreement 

 
This Master License and Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made effective by and between Business 
Interactions, LLC, d/b/a Harmony Healthcare IT, an Indiana limited liability company, of 17390 Dugdale Drive 
Suite 200, South Bend, Indiana 46635, (“Licensor”), and Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County of 1200 
College Dr, Rock Springs, WY 82901 (“Licensee”), collectively the "Parties." 
 
The Parties hereto agree that as a master form of contract, this Agreement establishes the general terms 
under which services will be provided by Licensor to specified Licensee affiliates from time to time.   As 
additional services are requested by Licensee, the Parties will negotiate and execute amendments to this 
Agreement in the form of a new Statement of Work. This Agreement in its entirety includes the following 
exhibits: 

 
Exhibit 1: Statement of Work 1 
Exhibit 2: Standard Terms and Definitions 
Exhibit 3: Software License Agreement 
Exhibit 4: Support and Maintenance Agreement 
Exhibit 5: Hosted Software Services Agreement 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto pertaining to the matters covered 
hereby and may only be modified or amended by a writing signed by all Parties.   

 
The Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective duly authorized 
representatives as of the date below (Effective Date).  
 
Valid if executed on or before 12/10/20 
 

By Licensee:  By Licensor: 

     
Signature  Signature 

   
     
Name  Name 

   
     
Job Title  Job Title 

   
     
Date  Date 

 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT (HHIT) is dedicated to quality throughout the entire lifespan of a client. Please take a 
few minutes to complete the quality feedback survey: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/ZCL389Y?Name=Tami%20Love&Acct=Memorial%20Hospital%20of%20Swe
etwater%20County&Rep=Tony%20Matt&SO=FILL%20ME%20IN of 3 short questions. Your candid response will 
help improve the HHIT process. 

158/192



  Page 3 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 
Exhibit 1: Statement of Work 1 
Goals and Objectives 
Licensee seeks to extract and archive data from legacy systems allowing for the decommissioning of these 
systems while maintaining access to the historical information through HealthData Archiver®. 
 
General Assumptions 

1. Required database credentials –Required credentials for backend source database access will be 
provided.  
 

2. Standard data drivers – The necessary data drivers are in place to extract the database and supporting 
data elements. 

 
3. Source database is intact and in functional order – No corrupt or malformed data caused by 

malfunctions of the source system and/or its ancillary hardware and software components. 
 

4. Documents and images are accessible – All scanned, non-structured, and system-generated 
documents/images are not encrypted, not locked or in a proprietary format requiring source vendor 
delivery.  

 
5. Local administrator rights – Licensor will be granted local administrator rights for access and installation 

of required data extraction tools on the source application server(s). 
 
Scoping Considerations 
The system details and archiving requirements relating to this Statement of Work were gathered during the 
discovery process. Some assumptions may have been made based upon industry best practices. Significant 
variance from the information documented on each system may result in a Change Order.  
 
The Proposed Solution 
Licensor proposes the archival of the following data sources: 
 

1. Data Source: (See Appendix 1 for additional details)  
 

The following services will be performed on each data source listed above. 
 

1. Data Extraction - Extraction of all relevant data to be archived and migration into an intermediary SQL-
based universal database for filtering and manipulation. 
 

2. Data Migration – Migration of all data into HealthData Archiver®, retaining data discreteness when and 
where possible.  

 
3. HealthData Archiver® –Configuration of the HealthData Archiver® (A HIPAA-compliant, virtual server 

based, vendor-neutral data archive accessible through any web browser) populated with historical 
information in a searchable, printable and reportable format with unlimited user licenses.  
 

4. Validation - The final validation and approval of the archive, signifying project completion.  Licensor will 
schedule a mutually agreed upon window, usually two weeks, to perform final archive validation.  At the 
completion of this period, if the data validation step has not been completed by the Licensee, the 

159/192



  Page 4 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Licensor reserves the right to invoice support and maintenance fees for the extended period of time 
required to complete the validation and provide final project approval.  
 

5. Application Hosting – Hosting of the completed HealthData Archiver® in a Tier III data center – providing 
secure, encrypted remote access.  
 

6. Ongoing Support and Maintenance – Helpdesk technical support available by calling the Licensor 
Support Desk at (800) 781-1044 or by emailing support@harmonyhit.com. Also includes availability of 
future software updates and upgrades. 

 
Delivery Schedule 
Licensor has the capacity to scale its resources to meet mutually agreed upon timelines for completing the 
project. Licensee in collaboration with Licensor, will establish the reasonable priority of systems archived as well 
as target kick-off and completion dates.  
 
Where agreed upon targeted kick-off, completion and go-live dates change, Harmony Healthcare IT will assess 
the impact of what could be additional effort required to meet dates and reserves the right to submit additional 
service charges. 
 
Approach 
Upon proposal acceptance, Licensor will provide a detailed project plan based on agreed upon timelines and 
information management goals for each system.  

 

160/192



  Page 5 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 
Licensing and Investment Overview 

 
 
Payment Schedule & Terms 

 60 months $7,727. First payment due at kick-off of project or no later than 04/30/21. 
 After 60 months, monthly fee of $1,855 per month going forward.  
 Travel and expenses are not included in the price and will be invoiced monthly as/if incurred.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

161/192



  Page 6 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Appendix 1: Data Source Details  

 

162/192



  Page 7 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

163/192



  Page 8 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

164/192



  Page 9 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 
 

165/192



  Page 10 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

166/192



  Page 11 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

167/192



  Page 12 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

168/192



  Page 13 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

169/192



  Page 14 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

170/192



  Page 15 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 

171/192



  Page 16 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

 
Exhibit 2: Standard Terms and Definitions 

 
1. Definitions. 

a. Authorized User.  “Authorized User” means each person Licensee desires to have access to the 
Software.   

b. Data Source.  “Data Source” means each individual source of archived data, including without 
limitation each database or a store of data files from a network or computer system.   

c. Documentation. “Documentation” means any printed or electronic materials provided to 
Licensee related to the products and services provided as part of this contract including without 
limitation, training materials, contracts, and other written materials generated by Licensor. 

d. Hosted Software.  “Hosted Software” means Software hosted within Licensor’s data center.  
e. Hosting Services. “Hosting Services” means services related to maintaining the Hosted Software 

within Licensor’s data center. 
f. Raw Data. “Raw Data” means the data extracted from the Data Source or provided from the 

Data Source vendor in its original format prior to any data processing or transformation.  
g. Software.  “Software” means all or any portion of a Licensee’s HealthData Archiver® provided 

to Licensee under the terms of the Software License Agreement between Licensor and Licensee. 
  

2. Training.  Licensor will provide basic training and training materials pertinent to the Software and 
Documentation. Additional training is available; upon request, Licensor will provide Licensee with 
specific details and will quote the then-current additional training fee. 

 
3. Copies.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement, including without limitation to this Exhibit, apply 

to any and all copies of the Software. Licensee may make one copy of the Software for use as a backup 
at each site where the Software is in authorized use under this Agreement. Licensee must reproduce 
and include any copyright, trade secret, trademark or proprietary data notices and other legends and 
logos on any and all copies. 

 
4. Restrictions.  Licensee may not transfer or assign the Software without the prior written consent of 

Licensor. Except as specifically provided above, Licensee may not reproduce the Software or 
Documentation or any part thereof. Licensee also may not make alterations to the Software or any part 
thereof, including but not limited to sub-routines, functions, libraries or other binary code segments of 
the Software; or use, rent, loan, sub-license, lease, distribute or grant other rights to the Software or 
Documentation to others. Licensee may not reverse engineer, reverse translate, decompile, disassemble 
or in any manner decode the Software, except as otherwise permitted by law. 

 
5. Proprietary Rights and Confidentiality. The Software and Documentation are solely owned by Licensor 

and are protected by copyright, patent and trade secret laws. Licensee will take all steps necessary to 
protect Licensor’s proprietary rights in the Software and Documentation, including, but not limited to, 
the proper display of copyright, trademark, service mark, trade secret and other proprietary notices on 
any copies of the Software.  Licensee will, at its own cost and expense, protect and defend Licensor’s 
ownership of the Software and Documentation against all claims, liens and legal processes of Licensee’s 
creditors and will keep the Software and Documentation free and clear of all such claims, liens and 
processes. Licensee will keep the Software and Documentation confidential and will not disclose or 
publish it, or any part of it, to others. 
 

172/192



  Page 17 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

6. Licensee’s Warranty. Licensee warrants that all individuals having access to the Software or 
Documentation will observe and perform all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Licensee shall, 
at its own expense, promptly enforce the restrictions in this Agreement against any person who gains 
access to the Software or Documentation while an employee or consultant of Licensee and who violates 
said restrictions by instituting and diligently pursuing legal and equitable action against them, seeking 
first a temporary restraining order, then a preliminary injunction and finally a permanent injunction and 
any and all damages due under the law.  Licensee agrees to immediately notify Licensor in writing of any 
misuse, misappropriation or unauthorized disclosure, display or copying of the Software or 
Documentation that may come to Licensee’s attention. 

 
7. Licensor’s Disposition of Raw Data.  Licensor shall keep the Licensee’s Data Source Raw Data for 90 days 

post completion and project sign-off. After 90 days, Licensor shall Store Raw Data from Licensee’s Data 
Source, unless the Licensee requests an Alternative Raw Data Disposition Option explicitly in writing to 
Licensor. 
 
Store Raw Data - 90 days post project closure and sign-off, Licensor will Store Raw Data from the Data 
Source. Licensee authorizes Licensor to store Raw Data, unless Licensee explicitly selects an Alternative 
Raw Data Disposition Option in writing to Licensor. At any time, Licensee may request, in writing, that 
Raw Data be destroyed at which time Licensor will enact the “Destroy Raw Data” option.  At all times 
when Licensor is storing Raw Data (including at any time following termination of this Agreement), 
Licensor shall store the Raw Data in accordance with all applicable state, federal and local laws and 
regulations, the BAA, and the Hosting Agreement executed between the parties.   
 
Alternative Raw Data Disposition Options:  
 
Destroy Raw Data - 90 days post project closure and sign-off, Licensor will notify Licensee in writing that 
Raw Data is due to be destroyed. Licensee will authorize Licensor to proceed with Raw Data 
destruction.  All Raw Data will be destroyed by methods outlined in either the HIPAA Security Rule 
(located at 45 CFR Part 160 and Subparts A and C or Part 164) or provided by the latest National Institute 
of Standards and Technology (“NIST”) guidelines.  Upon completion of Raw Data destruction, Licensor 
will provide a Certificate of Destruction to Licensee. 
  
Return Raw Data - 90 days post project closure and sign-off, Licensor will notify Licensee in writing that 
Raw Data is due to be returned to Licensee. Licensee will authorize Licensor to proceed with the Raw 
Data return, selecting one of the commercially recognized secure methods and practices provided in the 
written notification. Licensor will return Raw Data to the address provided by Licensee in the 
authorization. Upon receipt and confirmation by Licensee of the returned Raw Data, Licensor will 
destroy its copy of Raw Data utilizing commercially-recognized secure methods and practices methods 
outlined in the HIPAA Security Rule or the latest NIST guidelines.  Upon complete of Raw Data 
destruction, Licensor will provide a Certificate of Destruction to Licensee.  
 

8. Miscellaneous.  Licensee shall also pay all freight, transportation, insurance, media-related costs and 
taxes and other governmental charges, however characterized (except based on Licensor’s income), in 
connection with Licensee’s licensing of the Software.  Licensor shall be neither in default nor liable for 
any failure in performance or loss or damage under this Agreement due to any cause beyond its control. 
If requested by Licensor at any time, Licensee will certify under oath that it has fully and faithfully 
observed all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. At reasonable times, Licensor may inspect 

173/192



  Page 18 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Licensee’s premises and equipment to verify that all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are 
being observed.   

 
9. U.S. Government Restricted Rights. The Software is provided with RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Use, duplication 

or disclosure by the Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subdivision (b)(3)(ii) of The 
Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at 48 C.F.R. 252.227-7013 or in subdivision (c)(1) 
and (2) of the Commercial Computer Program-Restricted Rights clause at 48 C.F.R. 52.227-19, as 
applicable.  The Contractor/manufacturer is:  Harmony Healthcare IT, 17390 Dugdale Drive, Suite 200, 
South Bend, Indiana 46635. 

 
10. General. The following miscellaneous provisions shall apply to all sections of this Agreement: 

a. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal 
laws of the State of Wyoming, without regard to choice of law principles. 

b. Disputes.  If legal proceedings are commenced to resolve a dispute arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs, legal fees, and expert 
witness fees as well as any costs of legal fees in connection with any appeals. 

c. Indemnification. Each Party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, including 
Affiliates and each of their respective officers, directors, shareholders, employees, 
representatives, agents, successors and assigns from and against any and all claims, judgments, 
awards, costs, expenses, damages, and liabilities (including reasonable attorney fees) of 
whatsoever kind and nature that may be asserted, granted, or imposed against the other Party, 
and all associated Losses, to the extent arising directly or indirectly out of or in connection with 
the Services, Software, the Documentation, or any breach of this Agreement by the Party. 

d. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement conflicts with the law under 
which this Agreement is to be construed or if any such provision is held invalid by a court with 
jurisdiction over the Parties to this Agreement, such provision shall be deemed to be restated 
or redacted to reflect as nearly as possible the original intention of the Parties in accordance 
with applicable law, and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

e. Independent Contractor. Each party is an independent contractor hereunder and this 
Agreement shall not in any way create a partnership, joint venture, employer-employee, 
franchisor-franchisee or agency relationship between the Parties. 

f. Compliance with Laws.  Licensee shall comply with all laws, statutes and regulations governing 
or otherwise applicable to this Agreement. 

g. Transfer and Assignment. This Agreement and any rights hereunder may not be assigned or 
otherwise transferred by Licensee without the prior written consent of Licensor, which may be 
withheld for any reason or no reason. This Agreement shall be freely assignable and transferable 
by Licensor for any reason, and Licensor shall be allowed to use additional employees, 
subcontractors or independent contractors for the provision of services without the prior 
consent of Licensee. 

h. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

i. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and their respective successors and assigns, and no other person shall acquire any right 
under or by virtue of this Agreement. Provided, however, no assignment of this Agreement or 
of any right, duty or obligation to be granted or performed hereunder shall be made without 
the prior written consent of the other parties. 

174/192



  Page 19 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

j. Waiver of Breach and Survival.  The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or a waiver 
of such provision itself nor shall any delay on the part of either party to act upon any breach be 
deemed a waiver thereto. The sections of this Agreement that by their terms survive the 
termination or non-renewal of this Agreement shall so survive. 

k. Limitations on Rights of Third Parties. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon or give any person other than the Parties hereto 
any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated 
hereby. 

l. Force Majeure. In the event that the actions of either party, other than the payment of any 
amounts due hereunder, shall be delayed or hindered in or prevented from the performance of 
any act required hereunder by reason of strikes, lockouts, labor troubles, inability to procure 
materials, failure of utilities, riots, insurrection, war, terrorist attack, acts of God, or other reason 
beyond the party’s reasonable control, then performance of such act shall be excused for the 
period of the delay and the period for the performance of any such act shall be extended for a 
period equivalent to the period of such delay. 

m. Contacting Licensor.  The Licensor telephone number can be accessed 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week. Licensor maintains on-call staff members for technical emergencies. Licensor may use its 
judgment as to what constitutes an emergency. 

n. Authority to Execute Agreement.  All persons executing the Agreement in a representative 
capacity warrant that they have authority to execute this Agreement and bind the entities they 
purport to represent.  

 o. Warranties and Limitations.   
1. In order for any warranties to be valid, the following conditions must be met:  (i) the 

Software has not been modified, changed, or altered by anyone other than the Licensor; (ii) 
the operating environment, including both hardware and systems software, meets the 
Licensor’s recommended specifications; (iii) the computer hardware is in good operational 
order and is installed in a suitable operating environment; (iv) Licensee promptly notifies 
Licensor of its need for service; (v) Licensee provides adequate troubleshooting information 
and access so that the Licensor can identify and address problems; and (vi) all fees due to 
the Licensor have been paid. 

2. If all conditions in subparagraph (o)(1) have been met, Licensor warrants that the Software 
shall perform substantially in accordance with the Documentation for ninety (90) days from 
shipment.  Licensor’s entire liability and Licensee’s exclusive remedy for breach of this 
warranty shall be for Licensor, at its option, either to:  (i) return the License Fee paid for the 
Software; (ii) replace software that does not meet the limited warranty described herein 
and which is returned to Licensor with the original media and a copy of Licensee’s receipt; 
or (iii) attempt to correct any errors which Licensee may find in the Software during the 
above-described warranty period and which prevent the Software from performing 
substantially in accordance with the Documentation. 

3. If all conditions in subparagraph (o)(1) have been met, Licensor warrants that it will use 
reasonable efforts to perform the Services contemplated under the Agreement. Licensee’s 
sole and exclusive remedy for breach of this warranty is the right to terminate this 
Agreement immediately for the affected Software upon written notice to Licensor. 

4. Licensor will use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Hosting Services available in 
accordance with prevailing hosting industry standards, taking into account the Licensee’s 
workstations and the speed of their connection to Licensor’s hardware (the “Technical 
Standards”).  Licensor will use commercially reasonable efforts under the circumstances to 

175/192



  Page 20 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

remedy any interruptions, omissions, mistakes, accidents or errors in the Hosting Services 
(hereinafter “Defects”) and restore the Hosting Services substantially in accordance with the 
Technical Standards.  Upon notification in writing by Licensee of a failure in the Hosting 
Services to meet the Technical Standards, Licensor shall have twenty-four (24) hours in 
which to restore the Hosting Services substantially in accordance with the Technical 
Standards.  Licensor further warrants that it will not materially decrease the overall security 
of the Hosting Services during the Term and that the Hosting Services will not introduce 
malevolent code into your systems.  Licensee’s exclusive remedy is termination, as provided 
in paragraph 7 of Exhibit 5.  Licensor does not make, and hereby disclaims all other 
warranties as may pertain to the Hosting Services, whether express or implied, including but 
not limited to, the implied warranties of merchantability, non-infringement and fitness for 
a particular purpose, and except as set forth in this paragraph the Hosting Services are 
provided or performed on an “as is” basis.  Licensor does not warrant that the Hosting 
Services provided hereunder will be uninterrupted, error-free, without slow response time 
or completely secure. 

5. In no event shall Licensor be liable to Licensee or any third party for any losses; costs of 
procurement of substitute goods or services; lost profits; lost sales or business expenditures; 
investments; stolen data; lost data or commitments in connection with any business; loss of 
good will; delays; interruptions; viruses; or any indirect, punitive, exemplary, special, 
incidental or consequential damages arising out of or related to this Agreement, use of the 
Software or Documentation, performance of the Services or Hosting Services.  These 
limitations shall apply notwithstanding any failure of essential purpose of any limited 
remedy.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Licensor’s aggregate liability to Licensee 
(including attorney’s fees), if any, shall not exceed the amount of the fees paid to Licensor 
by Licensee under this Agreement during the one (1) month immediately preceding the date 
on which such claim accrued. 

6. No action, regardless of form, arising out of any transaction under this Agreement, may be 
brought by Licensee more than one year after Licensee has knowledge of the occurrence 
which gives rise to the cause of such action. 

 
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 
  

176/192



  Page 21 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Exhibit 3: Software License Agreement 
 

1. Grant of License.  Licensor hereby grants to Licensee a nonexclusive, nontransferable, limited license to 
use the software products described in Section 2, below (the “Software”), and the associated user and 
technical documentation (the “Documentation”), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
including without limitation Exhibit 2 (Standard Terms and Definitions) which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, and in consideration of timely payment of the License Fee and other 
charges described in Section 3, below. The license fee is based on the number of Data Sources, as defined 
in Exhibit 1 and any additional future Statement of Work entered into hereunder and noted in Section 
2, below. 
 

 Legal title to the Software and Documentation shall remain with Licensor as its sole property during the 
entire term of this Agreement.    

 
2. Description of Software.  The Software licensed by Licensor to Licensee under this Agreement shall be 

included in Exhibit 1 and any additional future Statement of Work entered into hereunder. 
 

3. Payment: 
a. Licensee shall pay Licensor the License Fee set forth in Exhibit 1 and any additional future 

Statement of Work entered into hereunder.   
b. Unless otherwise stated, all prices and fees are exclusive of state and local use, sales, and other 

applicable taxes and duties. Any applicable taxes will be paid by Licensee. Taxes will appear as 
separate additional items on Licensor’s invoices unless Licensee provides Licensor with a valid 
tax exemption certificate acceptable to relevant taxing authorities. Licensee shall indemnify 
Licensor against all applicable taxes and duties assessed in connection with the Agreement.   

c. All payments shall be due within 30 days after receipt of Licensor’s invoice. Any payment 
received after its due date shall bear interest at a rate of 1.5% per month for each month or 
fraction of a month beyond the payment due date.  

d. The Software shall be immediately returned to Licensor if any fees due under this Agreement 
are not paid as required.  

   
4. Term. This Software License Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date and remain in full force 

and effect for a period of five (5) years. Thereafter, this Software License Agreement will automatically 
renew for successive one-year terms upon the same terms and conditions unless and until terminated, 
as provided herein. 
 

5. Termination. Licensee may terminate this Agreement without cause after five (5) years. Licensee may 
terminate this Agreement with cause where Licensor fails to cure breach of this Agreement within sixty 
(60) days written notice of breach of this Agreement to Licensor. Licensor may terminate this Software 
License Agreement at any time upon written notice to the other party.  Licensee shall be entitled to a 
complete refund of the License Fee if it terminates this Software License Agreement within thirty (30) 
days of the original Effective Date.  Upon termination, Licensee shall dispose of the Software and 
Documentation and all copies thereof either by returning such Software and Documentation to Licensor 
or by destroying the same and certifying such destruction in writing.  Upon termination, Licensor shall 
provide Licensee a copy of the data upon termination of this agreement. The data will be delivered to 
Licensee as a backup of the relational database and any associated files. If Licensee requires the data in 
any other format, Licensor will provide Licensee a proposal for those services. 

 

177/192



  Page 22 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

6. Technology Escrow Terms.  Concurrent with execution of this Agreement, Licensee may opt-in, at its 
own expense, to the escrow terms below.  Pursuant to these terms, Licensor will deposit with an Escrow 
Agent the source code for Software.   
 

a. Enrollment.  Licensor will enroll Licensee as a beneficiary with the Escrow Agent. Licensee shall 
receive notification from Escrow Agent of enrollment as a named beneficiary.   

b. Verification. At Licensee’s request and expense, the Escrow Agent may at any time verify deposit 
material. In the event that the Escrow Agent informs the Parties that the deposit material does 
not conform, Licensor will promptly deposit conforming deposit material.   

c. Release Conditions. Escrow Agent will release source code to Licensee under one of the 
following circumstances (i) bankruptcy of Licensor; (ii) Licensor ceases trading; (iii) Licensor 
discontinues development of the Software. 

 
7. Injunctive Relief. Because of the unique nature of the Software and Documentation, Licensee 

understands and agrees that Licensor will suffer irreparable injury in the event Licensee fails to comply 
with any of the terms of this Agreement and that monetary damages may be inadequate to compensate 
Licensor for such breach. Accordingly, Licensee agrees that Licensor will, in addition to any other 
remedies available to it at law or in equity, be entitled to injunctive relief, without posting a bond, to 
enforce the terms of this Agreement. 

 
 

 
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 
  

178/192



  Page 23 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Exhibit 4: Support and Maintenance Agreement 
 

1. Software Support and Maintenance. Licensor shall provide technical support in response to specific 
inquiries by Licensee as well as software maintenance by way of patches, updates, upgrades, and error-
correction services (the “Services”) as set forth in any Statement of Work entered into hereunder. In 
exchange for the Services, Licensee shall pay to Licensor the fee set forth in Exhibit 1 and any additional 
future Statement of Work entered into hereunder. Licensor shall have the right to change the fee 
provided that Licensor gives Licensee at least sixty (60) days written notice of such change.   

2. Term and Termination. 

a. Term.  Licensee agrees that the Services Term will be equal to the Software License Agreement 
Term, including its automatic renewal provision. 

b. Termination. The Support and Maintenance Agreement shall terminate (i) immediately upon 
termination or expiration of Licensee’s right to use the Software; or (ii) upon Licensee’s failure 
to comply with any provision of the Agreement. The termination of this Support and 
Maintenance Agreement will result in the automatic termination of the Software License 
Agreement, and vice versa. 

 
3. License Support. The level of support that the Licensor can provide is dependent upon the cooperation 

of Licensee and the quantity of information that Licensee can provide. If the Licensor cannot reproduce 
a problem or if the Licensee cannot successfully gather adequate troubleshooting information, the 
Licensor may need temporary login access on the Licensee’s system to identify and address the problem. 

 
4. Licensee Responsibility. The Licensee shall not distribute the Software to any third party.  The Licensee 

shall not make any modifications to the Software. If Licensee makes modifications to the Software, the 
Licensor shall not be responsible for maintaining Licensee’s modified portions of the Software or for 
maintaining portions of the Software affected by Licensee’s modified portions of the Software.  
Corrections for difficulties or defects traceable to the Licensee’s errors or systems changes shall be billed 
at the Licensor’s standard time and material rates  
 

5. Right to Work Product. All error corrections, enhancements, new releases, and any other work product 
created by the Licensor in connection with the support services provided under this Agreement (the 
“Work Product”) are and shall remain the exclusive property of the Licensor regardless of whether the 
Licensee, its employees, or agents may have contributed to the conception, joined in its development, 
or paid the Licensor for the development or use of the Work Product.  Such Work Product shall be 
considered part of the Software, and subject to the terms and conditions contained herein and in the 
License Agreement. 
 

 
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 
 

 
 

179/192



  Page 24 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Exhibit 5: Hosted Software Services Agreement 
  

1. Hosting Services.  Subject to Licensee’s payment of the applicable fees for the Hosting Services described 
herein as set forth in Section 4 (“Hosting Fees”), Licensor will provide Licensee, on a non-exclusive basis, 
the Hosting Services described herein through which Licensee may access and use the Hosted Software. 
Licensor will (i) maintain the Hosted Software, together with all required third party software; (ii) utilize 
a platform of Licensor’s choice to host the Hosted Software; and (iii) provide Licensee with real-time 
access to the Hosted Software in order for Licensee to run the Hosted Software and use it for its intended 
purposes. 

2. Limitation on Use of Hosting Services 
a. Use by Licensee. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that Licensee may use the Hosting Services 

only for its internal operations and for providing services to its organization. 
b. Software.  This Hosted Software Services Agreement (“Hosting Agreement”) solely covers the 

Hosting Services provided by Licensor. No license to use any software is explicitly stated or 
implied within this Hosting Agreement.  A license to use any software must either be agreed to 
elsewhere in the Agreement or the applications must be purchased and/or licensed separately. 
  

3. Access to Hosted Software.  Access rights granted to Licensee shall be limited to those rights necessary 
to use the functions provided in the Hosted Software, and necessary for its use.  Licensor reserves the 
right to restrict or prevent access to: (i) any and all functions that access critical server or system 
resources; or (ii) directly modify the Hosted Software directories or database. 

4. Hosting Fees.  Licensee agrees to pay all fees relating to Hosting Services provided by the Licensor which 
are agreed upon by Licensor and Licensee and detailed in Exhibit 1.  

5. Ownership of Data and Operating System.  As between Licensor and Licensee, Licensee owns all data 
which is hosted under this Agreement by Licensee. Licensor may keep records of such data as may be 
necessary to comply with applicable laws and regulations or to verify Licensee’s system usage levels. All 
production systems, programs, operating instructions, and other documentation prepared and/or 
provided by Licensor to Licensee shall be and remain Licensor’s property. Licensor will provide Licensee 
a copy of the data upon termination of this agreement. The data will be delivered to Licensee as a backup 
of the relational database and any associated files. If Licensee requires the data in any other format, 
Licensor will provide Licensee a proposal for those services. 

6. Licensee Responsibilities and Acknowledgements.  Licensee acknowledges, agrees and understands 
that:  (i) the Hosted Software will be housed at Licensor’s chosen hosting facility, and will be operated 
on a server or servers as determined by Licensor; (ii) Licensee has purchased or legally obtained licenses 
for the Hosted Software, and has the right to have Licensor provide the Hosting Services outlined in this 
Hosting Agreement; (iii) Licensee will only use the Hosted Software in accordance to each application’s 
license agreement; and (iv) this Hosting Agreement does not grant Licensee any additional rights above 
those included in the Hosted Software’s License Agreement to utilize, distribute, or make available the 
Hosted Software to anyone within the Licensee’s organization, or any third parties.    

7. Term, Termination, Renewal.    
a. Term/Renewal.  All terms and conditions of this Hosting Agreement shall be in full force and 

effect during from the date of agreement execution and any periods hereunder. This Hosting 
Agreement shall automatically renew for successive equivalent periods, unless notice is given 
by either party of its intent to terminate the Hosting Agreement.  Any fees paid to Licensor for 
services preformed are not subject to refund. 

b. Termination.  Licensor shall have the right to immediately terminate this Hosting Agreement if 

180/192



  Page 25 of 25 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT    PO Box 6595    South Bend, IN  46660    (800)-781-1044    www.HarmonyHIT.com Form 1000 v1.17 
 

SO#: 20-3273-01 
 

Licensee is in breach of this Hosting Agreement, including but not limited to failure to pay 
Hosting Fees, and the breach is not cured within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice of 
such breach.  

c. Effect.  Upon termination of this Hosting Agreement, access to the Hosted Software will be 
immediately discontinued.    
 

8. Confidential Information.  Licensee will not disclose to any third party any confidential or proprietary 
information of Licensor or any technical information relative to the setup and security of the Hosting 
Services unless such disclosure is approved in writing by Licensor. 

9. Data Center and Server Access 
a. Data Center Access. Access to Licensee’s server's data or Licensee’s data on Licensor’s web or 

database servers is restricted. Requests to grant access to the server or data must be made by 
email or fax and be sent from an authorized person. This is done to protect Licensee’s data and 
code, and to provide documentation as to who has access to what. Co-located servers may be 
located behind a firewall with port restrictions as specified by the Licensee, if desired. Licensor 
will strive to maintain its servers, and monitor their activity in a professional manner, but is not 
liable for data loss due to the activities of hackers or crackers. 

b. Availability of Servers. Licensor shall endeavor to provide the Licensee with Hosting Services for 
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week throughout the term of this agreement. 

c. Backups. Licensor will back up each server nightly to a remote data center and will hold those 
backups for 30 days.  The remote facility maintains enough capacity to restore all Licensee 
environments in the event of a primary data center failure.  In addition to daily backups, the 
primary storage environment is replicated to a redundant storage environment every hour with-
in the primary data center.  These replications would be used in the event of a server failure or 
primary storage network failure. 

 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
 

181/192



 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT  PO Box 6595  South Bend, IN 46660  (800)-781-1044  www.HarmonyHIT.com        Form 1003 
v1.3 

 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 
 

 
This Business Associate Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of ___________________, 
(the “Effective Date”), by and between Business Interactions, LLC, d/b/a Harmony Healthcare IT, of 
17390 Dugdale Drive Suite 200, South Bend, Indiana 46635, hereinafter referred to as “Business 
Associate”, and _Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County_, of  1200 College Drive, Rock Springs, 
__Wyoming,  82901 hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”, (individually a “Party” and collectively, 
the “Parties”).   
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
of 1996, Public Law 104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” direct the 
Department of Health and Human Services to develop standards to protect the security, confidentiality 
and integrity of health information; and   
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and Human 
Services has issued regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Privacy Rule”); and   
 
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby Business 
Associate will provide certain services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such arrangement, Business 
Associate may be considered a “business associate” of Covered Entity as defined in the HIPAA Privacy 
Rule (the agreement evidencing such arrangement is reflected in a written agreement, and is hereby 
referred to as the “Arrangement Agreement”); and   
 
WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to Protected Health Information (as defined below) in 
fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement;   
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Arrangement Agreement, 
compliance with the HIPAA Privacy Rule, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Agreement in 
order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Privacy Rule and to protect the interests of both Parties.   
 
I. DEFINITIONS  
  
Except as otherwise defined herein, any and all capitalized terms in this Agreement shall have the 
definitions set forth in the HIPAA Privacy Rule.     
 
The term “Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information including, 
without limitation, all information, data, documentation, and materials, including without limitation, 
demographic, medical and financial information, that relates to the past,  

 
present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the provision of health care to 
an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; 
and that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is reasonable basis to believe the 
information can be used to identify the individual.   
 
 

182/192



 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT  PO Box 6595  South Bend, IN 46660  (800)-781-1044  www.HarmonyHIT.com        Form 1003 
v1.3 

 

 
II. COORDINATION WITH HIPAA PRIVACY RULE   
 
In the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of 
the HIPAA Privacy Rule, as amended, the HIPAA Privacy Rule in effect at the time shall control. Where 
provisions of this Agreement are different than those mandated in the HIPAA Privacy Rule, but are 
nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Privacy Rule, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 
The parties agree that, in the event that any documentation of the arrangement pursuant to which 
Business Associate provides services to Covered Entity contains provisions relating to the use or 
disclosure of Protected Health Information, which are more restrictive than the provisions of this 
Agreement, the provisions of the more restrictive documentation will control.  The provisions of this 
Agreement are intended to establish the minimum requirements regarding Business Associate’s use and 
disclosure of Protected Health Information.   
 
III. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE   
 

(a) Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is created or 
received by Covered Entity and disclosed or made available in any form, including paper record, oral 
communication, audio recording, and electronic display by Covered Entity or its operating units to 
Business Associate or is created or received by Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf shall be 
subject to this Agreement.   

  

(b) Business Associate agrees to not use or further disclose Protected Health Information other than as 
permitted or required by the Agreement or as required by law.   
  
(c) Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of Protected 
Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement.   
  
(d) Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to 
Business Associate of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business Associate in 
violation of the requirements of this Agreement.  
   
(e) Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the Protected Health 
Information not provided for by this Agreement.   
  
(f) Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides 
Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of 
Covered Entity agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to 
Business Associate with respect to such information.   
  

(g) Business Associate agrees to make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the 
manner required by Section 164.524 of the HIPAA Privacy Rule.     

  

(h) Business Associate agrees to make Protected Health Information available for amendment and 
incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Privacy Rule.     

  

(i) Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and 

183/192



 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT  PO Box 6595  South Bend, IN 46660  (800)-781-1044  www.HarmonyHIT.com        Form 1003 
v1.3 

 

disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate 
on behalf of, Covered Entity available to the Covered Entity, or at the request of the Covered Entity to 
the Secretary of Health and Human Services.   

  

(j) Business Associate agrees to document any disclosures of and make Protected Health Information 
available for purposes of accounting of disclosures, as required by Section 164.528 of the HIPAA Privacy 
Rule.    
 
  
IV. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE   
 

(a) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose Protected 
Health Information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered Entity as 
specified in the Arrangement Agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the 
Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity.   

  

V. ELECTRONIC PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION.   

  

On or before April 21, 2005, the Covered Entity is required to comply with the requirements of the 
Security Rule.   
  
(a) Business Associate shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of any electronic PHI 
that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity.   
  

(b) Business Associate shall ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, agrees to implement 
reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of any 
electronic PHI that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity.   

 
(c) Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any security incident (as defined in the Security 
Rules) of which Business Associate becomes aware.   
 
VI. TERM AND TERMINATION   
 

(a) Term.  The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the date first written above, and shall 
terminate when all of the Protected Health Information provided by Covered Entity to Business 
Associate, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, is destroyed or 
returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected Health Information, 
protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this 
Section.   

  

(b) Termination for Cause.  Upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate, 
Covered Entity shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement and the Arrangement 
Agreement.   

  

(c) Effect of Termination.   
  

(i) Except as provided in paragraph (ii) of this subsection, upon termination of this Agreement, 

184/192



 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT  PO Box 6595  South Bend, IN 46660  (800)-781-1044  www.HarmonyHIT.com        Form 1003 
v1.3 

 

the Arrangement Agreement or upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, Business 
Associate shall return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from Covered Entity, or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity.  This provision shall apply to 
Protected Health Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate.  
Business Associate shall retain no copies of the Protected Health Information.  
   

(ii) In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the Protected 
Health Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity notification of the 
conditions that make return or destruction infeasible.  Upon mutual agreement of the Parties that 
return or destruction of Protected Health Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the 
protections of this Agreement to such Protected Health Information and limit further uses and 
disclosures of such Protected Health Information to those purposes that make the return or destruction 
infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such Protected Health Information.   
  
VII. MISCELLANEOUS   
 

(a) No Rights in Third Parties.  Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Privacy Rule, the Parties to 
this Agreement do not intend to create any rights in any third parties.   

  

(b) Survival.  The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall survive the  
expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the Arrangement Agreement and/or the 
business relationship of the parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, employees, 
contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein.   
  
(c) Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties.  
The Parties agree that this Agreement will be automatically amended to conform to any changes in the 
Privacy Rule as is necessary for a Covered Entity to comply with the current requirements of the Privacy 
Rule and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191.   
    

(d) Assignment. No Party may assign its respective rights and obligations under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the other Party.   
  
(e) Independent Contractor. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will 
they be deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and 
any other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship.   
  

(f) Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Indiana.     

  

(g) No Waiver. No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any one or 
more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall 
prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion.   

  

(h) Interpretation.  Any ambiguity of this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that permits 
Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy Rule.    

  

(i) Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will 
remain in full force and effect.     

185/192



 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT  PO Box 6595  South Bend, IN 46660  (800)-781-1044  www.HarmonyHIT.com        Form 1003 
v1.3 

 

  

(j) Notice.  Any notification required in this Agreement shall be made in writing to the representative of 
the other Party who signed this Agreement or the person currently serving in that representative’s 
position with the other Party.  
  
(k) Authority to Execute Agreement.  All persons executing the Agreement in a representative capacity 
warrant that they have authority to execute this Agreement and bind the entities they purport to 
represent.    
 

  

186/192



 
 

Harmony Healthcare IT  PO Box 6595  South Bend, IN 46660  (800)-781-1044  www.HarmonyHIT.com        Form 1003 
v1.3 

 

 
 
IN WITTNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year  
written above. 
 
  By Covered Entity:      By Business Associate: 
 
        
              
  Signature       Signature 
 
 
               
Printed Name       Printed Name 
 
 
               
  Job Title       Job Title 
 
 
              
  Date        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

187/192



188/192



189/192



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Physician Assistant 

Supervising Physician Agreement 
 

This form is to be completed by the supervising physician: 

 

1. I am applying as a Supervising Physician for:          
 (Name of Physician’s Assistant)  

 

2. Physician Name:              
(Last)    (First)   (MI)   (Degree)   WY License #  

 

3. My medical specialty is:              

 

4. My primary practice area is:             

 

5. Define the practice setting (i.e. – Emergency room, walk-in clinic, women’s health, family practice,  

surgery, etc.):              

 

               

 

6. What is the patient population (i.e. – pediatrics, geriatrics, all ages, etc.):     

 

                         

 

7. Please discuss, if any, the call schedule the PA will have at this practice:     

 

                         

  

8. How often will you be available to the PA for personal contact?      

  

9. When you are not available in person, by what means of communication will the PA be able to reach you? 

 

                  

 

STATEMENT OF SUPERVISING PHYSICIAN: 

 

I hereby verify that ____________________________________________ will be under my direction at all 
      (Name of PA) 

times, and I agree to assume full responsibility for his/her actions in dealing with my patients who are 

hospitalized at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) or seen at any of the MHSC clinics. I agree 

to supervise the above named individual within the scope of their approved privileges.  I also agree to notify the 

hospital when I am no longer supervising this person. 

 

 

Signature:___________________________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
R 11/10/2020 

190/192



 

MENTORING AGREEMENT 

 

This agreement is between the Mentor, , and the Mentee, ,  

and will last for the approximate time period of  three (3) Years     and then informally after. 

 

The Mentee’s objectives for the Mentoring Program: 

 To develop skills and knowledge to be a competent and successful Nurse Practitioner. 

 To gain a better understanding of best-practice Nurse Practitioner skills and training.  

 To learn self-motivation, self-discipline, and goal setting techniques. 

 To create and follow a Three-Year Action Plan. 

 

 

Specific assistance Mentor will provide to assist Mentee in achieving objectives (those listed are just some possible 

examples): 

  Assist Mentee in the creation of  Action Plan that will consist of at least these 4 categories 1) Identified learning 

needs 2) Goal Setting 3) Resources available to or needed by Mentee to be successful at MHSC 4) How Mentee 

will be evaluated.  

  Assess Mentee’s current level of skills and knowledge and make a recommendation as to what education/training 

Mentee may need for success.  These recommendations will be added to the Action Plan. 

 Monitor NP’s relationship with patients and staff.  

 Provide guidance, support and feedback to NP. 

 Mentor may occasionally have to sign charts for the Mentee, if billing goes through the hospital EMR. 

 In collaboration with department Director and HR, will update clinical competencies. 

 Assign Mentee specific tasks/assignments aimed to develop Mentee’s leadership skills. 

 Evaluate the Mentees need for continued Action Plan at the end of the Three Year Action Plan.  

 

Steps Mentee will take in order to achieve these objectives: 

 Provide Mentor with completed Action Plan. 

 Read material assigned by Mentor within established time frames. 

 Complete tasks/assignments within established time frames. 

 

Mentee’s learning outcomes will be measured by: 

Demonstrated knowledge in all of the above-listed objectives. 

Completion of Action Plan. 
 

Face-to-face meeting will occur bi-weekly beginning________________. Other ways Mentor and Mentee will 

communicate will be via telephone and email. Everything discussed in the agreement will be confidential unless 

otherwise specified at the time of the discussion. This mentoring agreement sets forth the objectives that the Mentor and 

Mentee commit to working on together. Both agree to follow the guidelines of this agreement for the period specified and 

to make a good faith effort to resolve any issues that may arise between them. 

 

This Mentoring Agreement is not to take the place of the Supervision of the Mentee by the CEO.  
 

 
  

Physician Mentor’s Signature & Date Nurse Practitioner Mentee’s Signature & Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R 11/10/2020  

191/192



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Non-Physician Provider 

Statement of Supervising/Collaborating Physician 

 

Non-Physician Provider Name:          

Specialty:        NPI:       

Group Name:             

Office Address:            

Office Phone:    Office Fax:    Cell Phone:    

Supervising/collaborating physician will provide supervision of the above listed Non-Physician 

provider (Nurse Practitioner or CNM), in accordance with state law, organizational policies, and the 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations. The 

supervising/collaborating physician will: 

 Sign the privilege request of the Non-Physician Provider he or she supervises, accepting 

responsibility for appropriate supervision of the services provided and agree that the supervised 

Non-Physician Provider will not exceed the scope of practice defined by law. 

 Be physically present on hospital premises or readily available by electronic communication or 

provide an alternate to provide consultation when requested, and to intervene when necessary; 

 Enter or countersign all Non-Physician provider discharge orders in a timely manner; 

 Assume total responsibility for the care of any patient when requested or required by the 

policies referenced above, or in the interest of patient care. 

Supervising/Collaborating Physician 

Supervising/Collaborating Physician Name:         

Specialty:        NPI:       

Group Name:             

Office Address:            

Office Phone:    Office Fax:    Cell Phone:    

Supervising/Collaborating Physician Signature:        

Date:      

 

Revised 11/10/2020  

192/192


	Agenda - December 2 2020 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	October 7 2020 Minutes
	October 29 2020 Minutes
	1. Termination and Appeals 
	Rules of Practice Governing Hearings
	Sentinel Event Policy
	1. Guidelines for Negotiating Non-Physician Provider Agreements 
	Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts 
	Patient Safety Plan
	Quality Committee...Chair&apos;s Report November 2020 Kelsey
	11.18.20 Quality Minutes
	Quality Risk Safety and Accreditation Summary - November
	HR chair report NOVEMBER 2020 Tardoni
	Human Resources Minutes November 16 2020 Draft
	HR Comm 11-16-20 Packet
	Capital Expenditure Request
	State Loan and Investment Board Capital Expenditure Request
	November Committee Meeting Information 
	Buildings and Grounds Committee...Chair&apos;s Report November 2020 Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes November 17 2020 Draft
	November 17, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee Meeting
	Compliance Committee
	Agenda Nov 6 2020
	Minutes nov 6 2020
	Check List for Harmony Healthcare IT Healthdata Archiver
	Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County MLSA Final for Signature Nov 18 20 2
	HHIT BAA Agreement for Mem Hospital of Sweetwater County Oct 9 20
	AdBay
	Lincare
	Statement of Supervising Physician
	Mentoring-Agreement MHSC Clinic revised 11102020
	Statement of supervising collaborating physician

